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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after
due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a
market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that
there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited (the “Directors”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEM (the "GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to Jilin
Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited and its subsidiary (“the Group”). The directors, having
made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information contained
in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading, (2) there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement in this report misleading; and (3) all opinions expressed in this report
have bee arrived at after due and careful consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and
reasonable.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHRE

As the Chairman and on behalf of the Board of Directors
(the "Board”), | am pleased to report the activities of Jilin
Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2011.

During the year under review, the Group has spent significant
efforts on further promoting its core products, namely Hai Kun
Shen Xi capsule (§EEEZR%) and Compound Huonaoshu
capsule (1E 5 EMSETEE). As a result, the total turnover
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 was
RMB274,294,000, representing a sharp increase of 36.7% as
compared with RMB200,630,000 for the previous year. Profit
for the year attributable to owners of the Company significantly
increased to RMB50,893,000 from RMB35,891,000 last year.
For the year ended 31 December 2011, basic earnings per share
increased to RMB9.08 cents from RMB6.41 cents last year.

The notable results in 2011 were the outcome of the continued
effort of all levels of the management in the past year. In fact, the
Board of Directors has already expressed its optimistic view for
2011's profitability in the 2010 annual report. As such, the Board
would like to share with the shareholders that with the following
competitive advantages, which have enabled the Company to
build a strong foundation for it to march into an era of blooming
growth in the coming years.

Firstly, in view of the new situation where the State had further
advocated the reform on medical circulation to launch the basic
drug system and continued to increase the investment in public
health care, the Board of Directors of the Company captured the
favorable opportunities to introduce the new version of health
insurance directory in the country and various provinces (cities
and autonomous regions) in the beginning of the year. Taking
the advantage of our dominant species being included into the
health insurance directory, basic drug directory and medical
directory on new rural collaboration of various provinces (cities
and autonomous regions), we recognized the year 2011 as the
“Year of Speedy Growth"” of the Company and determined the
goal of rapid development for two dominant species including Hai
Kun Shen Xi capsule (82 B =R %) and Compound Huonaoshu
capsule ({E77)ElSEF2EE). We upheld a strategy of academic
promotion to further expand into the sales market. During the
year, by continuing to capitalize on the opportunities arising from
the national professional academic meeting hosted in Nanjing,
Xi‘an, Beijing and Harbin, we actively promoted our products
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHRE

and assigned professionals to different places to hold product
academic seminars, for which the drug instructions were given to
the doctors while the patients’ profiles were built. We established
communication channel with the patients and provided in-depth
after-sales services, thus effectively fostering a sales growth in
the dominant products.

Secondly, we further strengthened the production management
and conscientiously implemented the GMP management
protocols, thus maintaining a product qualification rate of 100%.

Thirdly, we accelerated the pace of technological transformation
and further enhanced the production capacity. During the year, we
followed the new GMP standard to establish a new production
line for solid dosage in the Huinan economic development zone,
so as to meet the fast-growing demand for dominant species
and secure higher results of popular products. The construction
project of the production line had been included in the 2011
adjustment and improvement project for the traditional industrial
base in the northeastern region by the NDRC.

Fourthly, during the year, the invention patent of “Compound
Huonaoshu capsule (1875 &SE7B2) and its quality control
methods” reported by the Company in 2009 had been authorized
by the State Intellectual Property Office, with a term of 20 years.
Meanwhile, the Company entered into the agreement with
the Qingdao Institute of Oceanography, Chinese Academy of
Sciences and acquired the exclusive right of use for five years
regarding the patent of “Extraction method of Fucoidan” invented
by the institute. The production technology and quality of our
dominant species had been further safeguarded.

Fifthly, during the year, the Company continued to be awarded
with the honorary title of the “Top Hundred Private Enterprise
in Jilin Province” ("HMEHREZME") and “10th Provincial
Leading Enterprise of Agricultural Industrialization” (“Z5+#t2
HELNEREBFEENNE") by Jilin Provincial Government. It
was also named as “AA+ Credit Rating Enterprise” by the Credit
Rating and Certification Center of Jilin Province, and “Top 30
Industrial Enterprise” by the Tonghua City Government. It was
renowned as the "Tax Champion Enterprise” ("#TikTTEE")
by Huinan County Party Committee and County Government.

Sixthly, the Company was still in the period of preferential tax
treatment for the high-tech enterprises.
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ERHRE

Looking ahead, the Company will formulate a development
goal to invigorate its business development on top of the boom
cycle in 2011, which represented a “Year of Speedy Growth”.
The Board of Directors believes that our management team will
perform their duties diligently and prudently to sustain higher
growth in turnover and profit attributable to equity holders for
the Group in the future. All these moves reflect that the Board of
Directors is fully confident of the Group’s business expansion and
has developed a well-organized long-term plan.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt
thanks to all levels of staff and the management for their efforts
and contributions in 2011 and my deep gratitude to our clients,
business partners and owners for their utmost support.

By order of the Board
Zhang Hong
Chairman

Jilin Province, the PRC
29 March 2012
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERBNWR D

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group's
turnover increased to RMB274,294,000 from approximately
RMB200,630,000 while the profit for the year attributable to
owners of the Company increased to RMB50,893,000 from
RMB35,891,000. For the year ended 31 December 2011, basic
earnings per share increased to RMB9.08 cents from RMB6.41
cents last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the manufacturing and
sales of Hai Kun Shen Xi capsule (82 B =B%) continued to
be the Group's core source of revenue. The medicine of Hai
Kun Shen Xi capsule has penetrated into the market, the sales
of which rose by 61% as compared with 2010. The sales of
Compound Huonaoshu capsule (1€ 75 /& i &7 2 #) reached
RMB47,551,000 for the year ended 31 December 2011, which
became the second best seller of the Group in 2011. Other
products such as Yi Da La Feng injection ({&KiERZF517R), Xue
Shuan Xin Mai Ning capsule (0143 AR EE), Dong Gui Long
Hui tablet (%555 #1), Qian Lie Gui Huang tablet (B15IHEZH)
also contributed sales amount of RMB19,429,000 in 2011, details
of which were further elaborated under the Section "Financial
Review".

OPERATION REVIEW

Good Manufacturing Practice (GMP)

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company has
already obtained GMP certificates for the following:

1. Tablets (5 &l) — valid until 8 August 2015
2. Capsules (BB — valid until 8 August 2015

3. Sterile Bulk (Cefalotin sodium, Cefpiramide) (4 & B} 2
(SETAEM R - BEFAUTAZ)) — valid until 8 August 2015

4. Pills (Water Pills), Membrane (G1E(7Kk4,) ~ F&HI) — valid
until 8 August 2015

5. Powder for injection (Cephalosporins) (3875 =8 $17))
—valid until 23 August 2012

6. Lyophilized powder for injection (R¥z#E17l) — valid until
31 December 2013

7. Small volume Parenteral Solution ({NA & E517%]) - valid
until 31 December 2013
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8. Sterile Bulk (Yan Suan Tou Bao Jia Tong) (4B [ 43 24 ( Ea ik
SETEFAT), Bulk (Yi Da La Feng) (JR#}%E) (k=R Z=) — valid
until 30 December 2013

9. Bulk drug (Fucoidan, Extractum for fructus gardenlae) Rk}
BE(1BR 2 HEEARS TR FIREWY)) — valid unit 31 December

2015

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Research and Development (R&D) department is essential
for the future success of a pharmaceutical company. In the past,
our R&D department had successfully developed the medicine,
Compound Huonaoshu capsule, which had generated huge profit
to the Company and finally led to the listing of the Company in
Hong Kong. In the year of 2003, our R&D department completed
the development of Hai Kun Shen Xi capsule, which has now
become the first largest contributor of revenue and its revenue
jumped by 61% as compared with last year. Yi Da La Feng
Bulk has obtained the production approval, and Tou Bao Bulk
has commenced commercial production for the year ended 31
December 2011.

In addition to our internal R&D resources, the Group also
embarked on joint efforts with other reputable R&D companies
to develop new potential pharmaceutical products. As at 31
December 2011, the major products currently under research and
development were as follows:
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Li Dan Qing Wan
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PRODUCTION FACILITIES

During the year, in addition to optimizing the existing production
facilities for unlocking their full potential, we have established
a new production line for solid dosage which is in strict
compliance with the new GMP standard in the Huinan economic
development zone, so as to satisfy the rapid and ever-growing
demand for dominant species with a view to achieving better
results for popular products.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group’s recorded a
revenue amounted to approximately RMB274,294,000 (2010:
RMB200,630,000), a growth of approximately 37% as compared
with the figure of the previous year. The audited profit for the
year attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
RMB50,893,000, representing an increase of 42% as compared
with RMB35,891,000 of the previous year. The basic earnings
per share amounted to RMB9.08 cents (2010: RMB6.41 cents),
representing an increase of RMB2.67 cents over the previous
year.

The obvious growth in turnover was mainly attributable to the
increase in the revenue from our core revenue generator, namely
Hai Kun Shen Xi capsule (R & ZB%). The medicine of Hai Kun
Shen Xi capsule had penetrated into the market, with the sales of
which in 2011 rising by 61% as compared with 2010.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the sales of Compound
Huonaoshu capsule amounted to approximately RMB47,551,000.

The Board of Directors is pleased with the financial performance
in 2011. It believes that the remarkable growth in profitability is
attributed to the following reasons.

Firstly, with the inclusion of our dominant species into the health
insurance directory of various provinces (cities and autonomous
regions) and the implementation of relevant management
measures during the “Year of Speedy Growth”, the sales volume
of Hai Kun Shen Xi capsule, being the Group's leading products,
relatively showcased a robust growth.

Secondly, the Group continued to extend its investment in
academic promotion and make further efforts to distribute
products to medical institutions. Accordingly, we further enlarged
our sales network and enjoyed a higher share in the public drug
market.
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For instance, the Group continued to take part in the national
professional academic meeting in Nanjing, Xi'an, Beijing and
Harbin. The Company also sent professionals to hold seminars
throughout the country and received notable success. Through
academic promotion activities, the Group has not only upgraded
its corporate image, but has also tapped business opportunities
and explored business networks. A host of new clients from
medical institutions in different regions are sought by us through
such meetings.

Thirdly, the Group continued to implement the plan of recruiting
temporary sales staff in line with its needs, in order to assist
regional sales staff in expanding their sales network, and in
hence, to capture and secure a larger share in the sales market.

The gross profit margin for the year ended 31 December
2011 was approximately 84%, representing a 5% increase as
compared with that of 79% for the year ended 31 December
2010.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group recorded other
income and gains of approximately RMB6,171,000, contrasting to
a figure of RMB6,101,000 for the year ended 31 December 2010.

Distribution and selling costs rose to approximately
RMB148,464,000 for the year ended 31 December 2011 from
approximately RMB94,306,000 in last year. These expenses
accounted for 54% of turnover in 2011, which represented a
7% increase from 47% as compared with the corresponding
period of last year. The increase in distribution and selling costs
of approximately RMB54,158,000 was mainly due to the growth
in staff remuneration as a result of the recruitment of temporary
sales persons.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, administrative expenses
decreased to approximately RMB25,937,000 from approximately
RMB26,307,000 last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERBNWR D

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group has maintained a sound financial position during this
year. As at 31 December 2011, cash and bank balances of the
Group amounted to RMB70,059,000 (2010: RMB97,559,000)
with total borrowings of RMB7,070,000 (2010: RMB6,690,000)
which were interest bearing at commercial rates and
unsecured. As at 31 December 2011, the Group had total
assets of RMB457,817,000 (2010: RMB379,672,000) which
were financed by current liabilities of RMB109,407,000 (2010:
RMB81,048,000), long term borrowings of RMB5,419,000 (2010:
RMB6,054,000), deferred tax liabilities of RMB484,000 (2010:
RMB956,000) and shareholders’ equity of RMB342,507,000 (2010:
RMB291,614,000).

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had a net cash and cash
equivalents of RMB70,059,000. As at 31 December 2011, the
ratio of the total liabilities to the total assets of the Group was
25% (2010: 23%) which was calculated by dividing the Group's
total liabilities of RMB115,310,000 (2010: RMB88,058,000) by
the Group's total equity and liabilities of RMB457,817,000 (2010:
RMB379,672,000). The Group's gearing ratio which derived from
the total borrowings to total net assets was 2.1% (2010: 2.3%).

EMPLOYEES

The Group has a total of 420 full-time employees and has
employed some temporary sales persons. For the year ended
31 December 2011, the total remuneration of employees,
including directors’ remuneration amounting to approximately
RMB68,393,000 (2010: approximately RMB45,905,000).

Remuneration is determined by reference to market conditions
and the performance, qualifications and experience of individual
employee. Discretionary bonuses based on individual performance
will be paid to employees as recognition of and reward for their
contribution. Other benefits include contributions to retirement
scheme and medical scheme.

'I 2 Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
Annual Report 2011

TREVE S R EBUERIR
REBRAFEHFEBEOTBMRR - R
——F+ZA=+—H8 AEENRESRIRITE
BAEHAARYT0,069,0007T( —FE—FF : A
R #97,659,0007T) * BE A ARY 7,070,000
T(ZE—FF : ARM6,690, 0007;) ZEE
FAMENERGE - WEKE R ——F
+ZA=+—H8 AEENEELERARKE
457,817,0007T(ZZE—Z4F : AR¥379,672,000
L) BRRRARBAEE AE’L%%109407000
T(ZZE—ZF : AR¥81,048,0007T)
BERARESL419,000(ZF—ZF ¢ }\Eﬁ%

6,054,000 T ) * ELEFE & & A R ¥ 484,000
T(ZZE—FF : AR#956,0007T) M I H #

AR M342 507,000 ( —E—TF : AR
291,614,0007%) °

BEkE

R_ZT——F+_A=+—8 AEEHERE
MBS EEY ARKE70,059,0007T c AZE——
F+ZA=+—R0 AEEEEREHEEREE
BEZEER25%(ZE—FF 1 23%) ' ZAE
EERZAEBEBEEAR115,310,0000(=F
—ZF . ARHE88,058,0007T ) B A £ [ g 25 6l
4wEEARKAS7 817,000 (ZE—FF : AR
#£379,672,00070) 5T EB L - AEEMEEGRE
LR (AERABERENEERFEZ L EFE)

B21%(ZE—ZF :23%) °
==
REBHEAIERE T420A @ TEAETE

BEEAB - BHE2-T——F+=-A=1+—8
LEEREFCHB(EREEMES)IOARE

68,393,0007T(ZZE—ZF 4 : #) AR#¥45,905,000
JT) e
HE D2 RIIGIEEAREREENRR - BFE

RigHmET - WISEATDRERESNRRZ
NTREE  ERYMMAERZRBF KER - £
ffE M B R BN R B RS -



Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

ESNGREEEGE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Zhang Hong

Aged 57, male, is the Chairman, general manager and secretary
of the Party committee. He holds a bachelor degree and is a
senior economist. His previous positions are as follows: He was a
teacher and the secretary of Youth League Committee of Huinan
No. 4 Middle School from September 1978 to October 1983;
he worked in county and town governments from November
1983 to September 1989, during which he held the position of
deputy town head; he has been the Chairman, general manager
and secretary of the Party committee of Jilin Province Huinan
Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited since October 1989.

Zhang Xiao Guang

Aged 48, male, is an executive director and deputy general
manager. He holds a bachelor degree and is a senior economist.
He held the positions of the secretary of Youth League
Committee of Chaoyang town engineer affairs equipment factory
of Shenyang railway bureau from July 1983 to September 1989;
deputy director of foreign trade bureau of Huinan County from
October 1989 to November 1990; executive director and deputy
general manager of the Company since December 1990.

Tian Xin Guo

Aged 55, male, is an executive director and deputy secretary of
the Party committee. He holds a master degree and is a senior
economist. He acted as the Secretary of the Ministry of Public
Transportation and the Economics and Trading Committee in
Huinan County from December 1979 to September 1984; studied
in the Jilin Province Radio and Television University for associate
degree from October 1984 to September 1986; from October
1986 to November 1986, has was general officer of Huinan
County government office; from December 1986 to March 1990,
the Chief of the Transportation Management Office in Huinan
County and the Secretary of the Party Branch; from April 1990
to September 1995, the Deputy Director of the Transportation
Bureau in Huinan County; from October 1995 to September 1999,
the Director of the State-owned Assets Management Bureau;
from October 1999 to October 2001, the Director of the Planning
Bureau in Huinan County; from November 2001 to May 2007,
the district manager, deputy secretary of the Party committee
and secretary of discipline committee of Huinan Changlong Bio—
pharmacy Company and on 9 August 2007, he commenced to
perform his duties of executive director and district manager,
deputy secretary of the Party committee and secretary of
discipline committee of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

ESNGREEERE

Chen Qi Ming

Aged 54, male, is an executive director and a senior economist
with a bachelor degree. From October 1978 to July 1982, he
studied in Jilin Agriculture University; from August 1982 to
October 1989, he worked in Economics and Trading Committee
and Heavy Industries Bureau in Huinan County; from November
1989 to October 1995, he worked in Agricultural Machinery
Bureau and Agricultural Bureau of the county; from November
1995 to April 2002, acted as director of Technology Bureau; from
May 2002 to August 2007, worked as district manager of Huinan
Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company; commenced to perform his
duties of executive director and district manager of the Company
on 9 August 2007.

Wu Guo Wen

Aged 47, male, is an executive director and chief engineer. He
holds a master degree and is a Pharmacist-in-charge and senior
engineer. From July 1984 to August 1986, he studied in Shanxi
Province Herbal School; from September 1986 to August 1988,
he acted as director of quality inspection department of herbal
medicine company in Huinan County; from September 1988 to
August 1991, he studied in Shanghai Medicine University; from
September 1991 to January 1993, he acted as district manager
of Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company; from February 1993 to
May 1996, he pursued master degree in Jilin University; from
June 1996 to August 2007, he acted as chief engineer of Huinan
Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company and commenced to perform
his duties of executive director and chief engineer on 9 August
2007.

Zhao Bao Gang

Aged 45, male, is an executive director and chief finance officer.
He holds an associate degree and is a certified accountant,
certified estimator and senior economist. From July 1987 to July
1990, he studied in Jilin Finance and Tax Training School; from
August 1990 to May 1995, he acted as director of Finance Bureau
of Huinan County; from August 1996 to December 2006, he held
the position of director and equipment director of Jilin Province
Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited and was
appointed as director and chief finance officer of the Company in
March 2007.

'I 4 Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
Annual Report 2011

R B EA

HITEE - B b4 AREE - S T2 -
1978F 103 ~1982F 7 ' EEMBEKRBESE -
198248 ~1989F 108 « FEMEREEHKLEL - &1
BIE 1989411 A~19954F 108 © L& 2%
B BREERTIE 199511 A ~200244 A8 -
FHEEBBE + 200295 A ~20074F8 7 » 18
mREEEQRRSALE  2007F8A9HHKE
TTRARITE BN BRI 3R (R AR -

REIX

WITES BT - B - 475k - BBLIRRAE -
TELR  SALTREA - 198447 5 ~198648
A e PESEREE 0 1986F9H ~1988
T8 TEEBEEN AT EREHE 198849
A~1991F8A « f LGB EABEE : 1991F9
A~1993%F1 7 + (ERBELEE RN AR IHAIE ¢ 1993
F2H~1996F 58  fEEMABHYGERE L4
1996F6 8 ~2007F8 A EmRAELEE ARIET
F2R0 0 20078 AR MM BITARIMITE SR
T FAT4E TRRAD -

HEHEE

WITES IS REE - B 465 REEFE - &
e stam - M EE - SAEARD - 19874F7
A~1990F78  EEMH RS EENEREE
1990 8 5 ~19954F 5 A + £ 1B & 8 BB
£ 1 199648 A ~20064F 12 8 - FEEERELL
BERMERAREERRERER : 2007F3A4
TRAREERYTEES



Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

ESNGREEERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Shen Yu Xiang

Aged 61, male, is an independent non-executive director. From
April 1984 to October 1995, he acted as deputy director of
Finance Bureau of Huinan County; from November 1995 to
October 1998, he worked as dean of Finance and Trade Office
of Huinan County; from November 1998 to December 2000,
he acted as director of Audit Bureau of Huinan County and was
appointed as independent director of the Company since 2001.

Xue Chang Qing

Aged 50, male, is an independent non-executive director with
a bachelor degree and is a senior auditor, international certified
internal auditor, certified accountant, certified assets estimator
and certified tax agent. From September 1978 to September
1981, he studied in Changchun Machinery Industrial School
majoring in machinery manufacture; from September 1981 to
May 1988, he acted as accountant of Changchun Printing and
Dyeing Factory; from May 1988 to January 2006, he worked
as accountant, internal auditor, senior auditor and deputy dean
of finance office of Changchun Institute of Applied Chemistry
Chinese Academy of Sciences; since January 2006, he has acted
as dean of assessment department of Jilin Jinshi Certified Public
Accountants Company Limited. He commenced to perform his
duties of independent director of the Company on 9 August 2007.

Yan Li Jin

Aged 57, male, is an independent non-executive director and
holds a master degree. From March 1977 and January 1980,
he studied in Politics and History Department of Si Ping Normal
University; from July 1994 to July 1997, he studied in History
Department of Northeast Normal University; from January 1998
to March 2000, pursued master degree in Northeast Normal
University; from January 1980 to July 1993, he worked as teacher
and dean of students of Huinan No.1 Middle School; from
August 1993 to January 1997, he acted as principal of Huinan
No.1 Middle School and commenced to perform his duties of
independent director of the Company on 9 August 2007.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

ESNGREEERE

SUPERVISORS

Zhang Jing Zhou

Aged 63, male, he joined Changlong Bio-pharmacy in March 1995.
He has acted as the Chairman of labour union and supervisory
committee of the Company since 1996.

Wu Wei Men

Aged 42, male, graduated from Dandong Textile Training School
with associated degree in industrial accounting in 1991. From
1991 to 2004, he worked as finance director of hardware factory
of Huinan County. He joined Changlong Bio-pharmacy in 2004 and
has acted as supervisor of the Company since 9 August 2007.

Li Bao Hai

Aged 55, male, he joined Changlong Bio-pharmacy in July 1990.
He worked as an electrician and dean of electricity distribution
office. He has acted as the Supervisor of the Company since
1996.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

ESNGREEERE

OTHER SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mok Sai Cheong Mark

Aged 32, male, is the qualified accountant and company secretary.
He holds a Bachelor's degree in accounting. He is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He
has over 11 years of experience in auditing and accounting.

Zhang Yan Jun

Aged 46, male, holds an associate degree and is the secretary of
the board of Directors and senior economist. From August 1985
to October 1995, he worked as director of finance department
of the Second Light Industrial Bureau of Huinan County; from
November 1995 to October 1996, director of production
department of economy and trade committee of Huinan County;
from November 1996 to July 2007, deputy secretary of the Party
committee of Huinan Taitai Bio-pharmacy Company Limited and
the chairman of Supervisory Committee. He has acted as dean of
security department of Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company
Limited since August 2007 and secretary of the board of directors
since November 2009.

Yang Ze Shu

Aged 44, male, graduated from Yanbian Medical College in 1992
with a bachelor degree. He is Chief Quality Officer and chief
pharmacist and senior engineer. From 1992 to 1999, he acted as
dean of Pharmaceutical office of Institute for Drug Control. He has
worked as Chief Quality Officer of the Company since 2000.
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Report of the Directors

EEOHRES

The Directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2011.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Company was established as a state-owned enterprise in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") in 1989. On 29 December
1995, under the relevant provisions of the PRC Company Law,
the Company was re-organised from a state-owned enterprise to
a limited liability company. On 16 August 1996, with the approval
of the Economic Restructuring Commission of Jilin Province,
the Company was further converted into a joint stock limited
company. On 20 April 1999, the Company made a bonus issue
from capitalisation of retained profits at the proportion of one
bonus share for every two existing shares.

The Company’s H shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (“GEM") of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 24 May 2001.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and
distribution of biochemical medicines in the PRC under the brand
names of Changlong and Shendi. There were no changes in the
nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The Group has only one business segment which is the
manufacture and distribution of biochemical medicines in the
PRC. In 2011, turnover of the Group was generated entirely
from sales in the PRC and all identifiable assets of the Group
are located in the PRC. Accordingly, no business or geographical
segmental analysis is prepared for the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 and
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date
are set out in the financial statements on pages 38 to 111.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.
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Report of the Directors

EEOHRES

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following is a summary of the published results and the assets
and liabilities of the Group prepared on the basis set out in the
notes below. This summary is not part of the audited financial
statements.

MBERHE
ATAAEMEAGEAUREEREEZH
Z - DERTXMEAREERS  AHETEL
BRI BREZ—H5 -

Results E45
2011 2010
—=E——fF —ZE-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBFT
Turnover e 274,294 200,630
Profit before income tax Bana 61,604 43,282
Income tax expense FriSfisz (10,711) (7,391)
Profit for the year from ordinary activities REERERBABGEAE
attributable to owners of the Company EREHER 50,893 35,891
Assets and liabilities EERAE
2011 2010
—=E——fF —E-EF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Total assets BEE 457,817 379,672
Total liabilities BaE (115,310) (88,058)
Net assets EEFE 342,507 291,614

BEARER BIOLOGICAL ASSETS, PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE
ASSETS

Details of movements in bearer biological assets, property,
plant and equipment, and intangible assets of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in Notes 16, 17 and 21 to
the financial statements respectively.
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Report of the Directors

EEGHRES

MATERIAL INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED
COMPANIES

The Group made no material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries and affiliated companies during the year ended 31
December 2011. Save as described in note 36 to the financial
statements, as at 31 December 2011, the Group had no other
future plans for material investments or significant changes in
capital assets of subsidiaries and affiliated companies.

SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note
20 to the financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group and the Company are set
out in Note 30 and 31 to the financial statements.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The operations of the Group were financed mainly by
shareholders’ equity. The Group will continue to adopt its treasury
policy of placing the Group's cash and cash equivalents in interest
bearing deposits, and to fund operations with internal resources.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in Note 33 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and in Note 34 to the financial
statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2011, the reserves of the Company available
for cash distribution or distribution in specie was amounted to
approximately RMB212,707,000 (2010: RMB161,977,000).
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Report of the Directors

EEGHRES

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group sold about 25% of its goods to its five
largest customers (2010: 16%) and sales to the largest customer
included therein accounted for 9% (2010: 6%) of the Group's total
sales.

In the year under review, the Group’s purchases from the five
largest suppliers accounted for about 54% (2010: 37%) of the
Group's total purchases and purchases from the largest suppliers
therein accounted for 30% (2010: 12%) of the Group's total
purchases.

None of the directors of the Company or any shareholders who,
to the best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the
Company's issued share capital had any beneficial interest in the
Group's five largest customers and five largest suppliers noted
above.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Group
mainly generated revenue and incurred costs in Renminbi. The
directors consider the impact on foreign exchange exposure of
the Group is minimal. Accordingly the Group did not employ any
financial instruments for hedging purposes.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Details of the capital commitments of the Group and the
Company as at 31 December 2011 are set out in Note 35 to the
financial statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.
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DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Directors and Supervisors of the Company during the year
and up to the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Hong (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang

Mr. Tian Xin Guo

Mr. Chen Qi Ming

Mr. Wu Guo Wen

Mr. Zhao Bao Gang

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Shen Yu Xiang

Mr. Xue Chang Qing

Mr. Yan Li Jin

Supervisors

Mr. Zhang Jing Zhou
Mr. Wu Wei Men
Mr. Li Bao Hai

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out in the section
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” of
the annual report.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors’ and Supervisors’ emoluments and those
of the five highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in Note
14 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS OR LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

Each of the Directors and Supervisors (including the Independent
Non-Executive Directors and the Supervisors) has entered into a
service contract or letter of appointment with the Company for a
term of three years. None of the Directors or the Supervisors had
entered into any service contract or letter of appointment with
the Company which is not terminable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

No directors had a significant beneficial interest, either directly
or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of
the Group to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party
during the year.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES

At 31 December 2011, the interests and short positions of the
Directors, supervisors and chief executives of the Company in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") as recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

ESRESRENhzERE

EENFABEREARRHEMBATHER—7
BHAEENEBEEENEMNANTHREEE
HEENEAE S ER °

BE - HEIEE LhmES

FA - AARIKEMBARMEREE - BEE
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ﬁB)E'JHxT - R REFT A IREE %&Hﬂ
E&PIE35215 « B ALK E A=

KA FIRBE R AR AR E ﬁim%ﬁﬁu(ra\l%
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pursuant to the minimum standards of dealing by directors as  {KIZ¥EMAME AN QD 7 KB a9z KA B N
referred to in Rule 5.46 to 5.67 of the Rules Governing the Listing T :
of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) were as follows:
Long positions in shares RBROHNRE
Percentage of
Percentage of total registered
Type of Number of Domestic Share Capital
Director Interests Capacity Domestic Shares Shares {EAZMERE
4= R R 514 RNEREE HRERBES L WEZDL
Zhang Hong Personal Beneficial owner 101,937,000 26.29 18.19
EEIN EA EmEA A
Zhang Xiao Guang Personal Beneficial owner 42,315,000 10.91 7.55
B EA EnEEA
Wu Guo Wen Personal Beneficial owner 900,000 0.232 0.161
REIX EA EmfEAA
Chen Qi Ming Personal Beneficial owner 300,000 0.077 0.054
GAEGE EA EnlEEA
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, none of the
Directors, supervisors and chief executives of the Company has
any interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the minimum standards of dealing by directors as
referred to in Rule 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Saved as disclosed under the headings “Directors’ and
supervisors’ interests in shares” above, at no time during the
year were there any rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any director, supervisor and chief executive or their respective
spouses or children under 18 years of age, or were any such
rights exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the directors, supervisors and chief executives to acquire
such rights in any other body corporate.

INTERESTS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO
AND SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2011, the following persons (other than the
Directors, supervisors and chief executives of the Company) had
interests and short positions in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO.
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B FTERE R BURA ©
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WA B KRR PR A s AR

Long positions in shares REBRAHRE
Percentage of
Number of Percentage of  total registered
Capacity/Nature Domestic of Domestic Share Capital
Name of shareholder of Interest Shares Shares HABEFMERAR
BREERE B EwmHE RNEREE HRERBS T MBSt
Huinan County SAB (Note) Beneficial owner 81,975,000 21.14 14.63

BESMREERRETAR (ML) BEREAA

Note:  Apart from the equity interest in the Company, Huinan County SAB  ffit ©  BAMERQ B MRAEZI - BB SHREEBR

does not have any direct or indirect interest in the Company, including
representatives in the Board of Directors.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, the Directors
were not aware of any other person (other than the Directors,
Supervisors and Chief Executives of the Company) who had
interests and short positions in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group and
the Company were entered into or were in existence during the
year.

COMPETING INTEREST

None of the Directors, the management shareholders, the
significant shareholders or the substantial shareholders (as
defined in the GEM Listing Rules) of the Company had any
interest in a business, which competes or may compete with the
business of the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHT

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the article
of association of the Company or the laws of the PRC, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was established, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had no material related party
transactions, which constituted connected transactions under the
GEM Listing Rules.

STAFF RETIREMENT SCHEME

Details of the staff retirement scheme of the Group and the
employer’s staff retirement costs charged to the profit and
loss account for the year are set out in note 15 to the financial
statements.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company set up an Audit Committee on 24 May 2001 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the requirements
as set out in Rules 5.28 and 5.29 of the GEM Listing Rules. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and provide
supervision over the financial reporting procedures and internal
control system of the Group.

The committee has reviewed with the management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters,
including a review of the audited results of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2011.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from
the published audited financial statements and reclassified as
appropriate, is set out on page 112 of the annual report. This
summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and to the best of the directors’ knowledge, as at the date of this
annual report, there was a sufficient prescribed public float of the
issued shares of the Company under the GEM Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principle corporate governance practices adopted
by the Company is set out on pages 27 to 34 of the annual report.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be submitted to Annual General Meeting of the
company to re-appoint the auditors, Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK)
CPA Limited.

By order of the Board

Zhang Hong

Chairman

Jilin Province, the PRC
29 March 2012
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied with
all the code provisions as set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practice (the “Code"”) contained in Appendix 15 to
the GEM Listing Rules throughout the financial year ended 31
December 2011 subject to the deviations disclosed hereof.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors on terms no less than the required
standard of dealings as set out in rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The Company has also made specific enquiry of all
Directors and the Company was not aware of any non-compliance
with the required standard of dealings and its code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by Directors throughout the year
ended 31 December 2011.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD MEETINGS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Hong (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang

Mr. Tian Xin Guo

Mr. Chen Qi Ming

Mr. Wu Guo Wen

Mr. Zhao Bao Gang

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Shen Yu Xiang

Mr. Xue Chang Qing

Mr. Yan Li Jin

As at the date of this report, the Board comprised nine Directors,
six of whom are Executive Directors, three of whom are INEDs of
the Company. Details of backgrounds and qualifications of each
Director are set out on the section headed "Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management" of this annual report.
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The Board is responsible for corporate strategy, annual and
interim results, succession planning, risk management, major
acquisitions, disposals and capital transactions, and other
significant operational and financial matters. Major corporate
matters that are specifically delegated by the Board of Directors
to the management include the preparation of annual and
interim accounts for Board approval before public reporting,
execution of business strategies, implementation of adequate
systems of internal controls and risk management procedures,
and compliance with relevant statutory requirements and rules
and regulations. Executive Directors are responsible for running
the Group and executing the strategies adopted by the Board.
The INEDs serve the relevant function of bringing independent
judgement on the development, performance and risk
management of the Group through their contributions in board
meeting.

All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the affairs
of the Group. Each executive Director has sufficient experience
to hold the position so as to carry out his duties effectively and
efficiently.

The Board considers that each INED of the Company is
independent in character and judgement. The Company
has received from each INED a written confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Board meets at least four times each year at approximately
quarterly intervals to discuss the Group's business development,
operation and financial performance. Board papers are circulated
not less than 7 days before the Board meetings to enable the
Directors to make informed decisions on matters to be raised at
the board meetings. Minutes of board meetings are kept be the
Company Secretary and are open for inspection at any reasonable
time on reasonable notice by any Director.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, there is no financial,
business and family relationship among the members of the
Board.
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Board meetings
During the year, six regular board meetings were held. Details of
the attendance of the Directors are as follows:

Directors 5=

Executive Directors WITES

Mr. Zhang Hong (Chairman) RoAFCE(ESE)
Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang SRS S

Mr. Tian Xin Guo BB L&

Mr. Chen Qi Ming PRESRASCAE

Mr. Wu Guo Wen REI -
Mr. Zhao Bao Gang HHE M
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYIENTES
Mr. Shen Yu Xiang R ERESEE

Mr. Xue Chang Qing ERATE

Mr. Yan Li Jin g eiE

Apart from the above regular board meetings of the years, the
Board of Directors will meet on other occasions when a board-
level decision on a particular matter is required. The Directors
will receive details of agenda items for decision and minutes of
committee meetings in advance of each board meeting.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under the code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Mr. Zhang Hong assumes the role of both
the chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company. The
Board is of the view that this has not compromised accountability
and independent decision making for the following reasons:

- the Audit Committee composes exclusively of
Independent Non-executive Directors;

- the Independent Directors have free and direct access
to the Company’'s external auditors and independent
professional advice when considered necessary.

Exeez
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Meetings attended/Held
BEdE BETER

6/6
5/6
6/6
6/6
6/6
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6/6
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Mr. Zhang Hong, the chairman, is a substantial shareholder of
the Company and has considerable industry experience. He is
motivated to contribute to the growth and profitability of the
Group. The Board is of the view that it is in the best interests of
the Group to have an executive chairman so that the Board can
have the benefit of a chairman who is knowledgeable about the
business of the Group and is most capable to guide discussions
and brief the Board in a timely manner on pertinent issues and
developments to facilitate open dialogue between the Board and
the management.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company appointed INEDs who have appropriate and
sufficient experience and qualification to carry out their duties so as
to protect the interests of shareholders. Mr. Shen Yu Xiang, Mr.
Xue Chang Qing and Mr. Yan Li Jin are the INEDs.

All INEDs are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with
the articles of association of the Company. All the existing INEDs
are appointed for an initial term of three years and the term of
office shall continue after the expiration of the initial term until at
least 1 month’s prior written notice is given by either party or the
Company to terminate the same.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

According to the Code, the Company has set up a Remuneration
Committee on 29 September 2005. As at the date of this report,
the chairman of the committee is Mr. Shen Yu Xiang, an INED,
and other members include Mr. Xue Chang Qing, and Mr. Zhang
Hong, the majority being INEDs. The remuneration committee
schedules meet at least once a year and the quorum necessary
for the transaction of business is two.

The role and function of the Remuneration Committee included
the determination of the specific remuneration packages of all
executive Directors, including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment,
and make recommendations to the board of the remuneration
of non-executive Directors. The remuneration committee should
consider factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors,
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and desirability of
performance-based remuneration.
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2011, the
Remuneration Committee held two meeting. The individual
attendance records of each member are as follows:

Members 24=1

Mr. Shen Yu Xiang (Chairman) ILERERHE(FRE)
Mr. Xue Chang Qing BERBNE

Mr. Zhang Hong sRaLSEAE

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Remuneration
Committee reviewed matters relating to remuneration for the
Directors and members of senior management, and discussed
the remuneration policy of the Group.

The remuneration committee of the Company has considered
and reviewed the existing terms of employment contracts of
the Executive Directors and appointment letters of the INEDs.
The Remuneration Committee of the Company considers that
the existing terms of employment contracts of the Executive
Directors and appointment letters of the INEDs are fair and
reasonable.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Nomination Committee
according to the relevant provisions of the GEM Listing Rules with
written terms of reference. Its primary responsibilities include
reviewing and supervising the framework, number of members
and composition of the Board and making proposals to the Board
in respect of any changes and identifying and nominating suitable
persons for appointment of Director.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee
comprises of one Executive Director, Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang and
two INEDs, Mr. Xue Chang Qing and Mr. Shen Yu Xiang, which is
in compliance with the requirement of the GEM Listing Rules that
INEDs should form the majority of the Nomination Committee.
Mr. Shen Yu Xiang is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

Nomination procedures include identification and
acknowledgement of qualified individuals by the Nomination
Committee, and review and approval of such nominations by
the Board. The Nomination Committee will evaluate potential
candidates considering factors such as professional expertise,
relevant experience, personal ethics and integrity.
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2011, the Nomination
Committee held three meetings. During the meeting, the
Nomination Committee has reviewed and discussed the
framework, number of members and composition of the Board.
Also, the Nomination Committee has identified and made
proposals in respect of the outstanding appointment of Executive
Directors and INEDs. The individual attendance records of each
member are as follows:

Members RE

Mr. Shen Yu Xiang (Chairman) LR E(ERE)
Mr. Xue Chang Qing BERBTE

Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang SRR S

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited was the auditor of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2011. Other than
annual auditing services, Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA
Limited did not provide non-auditing services to the Company or
any of the Group's companies during the year.

Auditor’s remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2011 is
set out in Note 9 to the financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in 2001 and currently
comprises three members, Mr. Shen Yu Xiang, Mr. Xue Chang
Qing and Mr. Yan Li Jin. All of them are INEDs. The chairman of
the Audit Committee is Mr. Shen Yu Xiang. The Board considers
that each Audit Committee has broad commercial experience and
there is a suitable mix of expertise in business, legal, accounting
and financial management in the Audit Committee.

None of the members of the Audit Committee has any personal
financial interests, conflicts of interests arising from cross—
directorships or day-to-day involvement in the running of the
business. The Audit Committee oversees the financial reporting
process and the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
system of internal control. During the year, the Audit Committee
carried out their own independent review of the interim and
annual financial statements and financial reports and statements
included in circulars of the company published during the
year. And with the assistance of the internal audit department,
which reports directly to the committee, the Audit Committee
completed its review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company's systems of internal control and reported its findings
and recommendations to the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report
CEEARRE

The Audit Committee held 4 meetings during the year under
review. Details of the attendance of the audit committee
meetings are as follows:

Members 124=1

Mr. Shen Yu Xiang (Chairman) R (L)
Mr. Xue Chang Qing BERARE

Mr. Yan Li Jin BigeiaE

The Group's unaudited quarterly and interim results and annual
audited results during the year ended 31 December 2011 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee, which was of the
opinion that the preparation of such results were complied with
the applicable accounting standards and requirements and that
adequate disclosure have been made.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors have the responsibilities for the preparation of
the financial statements of the Group and shall ensure that
the financial statements are in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Directors
also ensure the timely publication of the financial statements of
the Group.

The statements of the external auditors of the Company,
Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited, about its reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out
in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 36 and 37 of this
annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company has conducted review of its system of internal
control periodically to ensure the effective and adequate internal
control system. The Company convened meeting periodically
to discuss financial , operational and risk management control.
The Directors are of the view that the existing system of internal
control is effective and adequate to the Group.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company disclosed all necessary information to the
shareholders in compliance with GEM Listing Rules. Extensive
information about the company’s activities is provided in
the Annual Report and the Interim Report which are sent
to shareholders. There is regular dialogue with institutional
investors. Enquiries from individuals on matters relating to their
shareholdings and the business of the company are welcomed
and are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

All shareholders have 45 days’ notice of the Annual General
Meeting at which all directors and Committee chairs are available
for questions. All shareholders are encouraged to attend the
Annual General Meeting.

LOOKING FORWARD

The Group will keep on reviewing its corporate governance
standards on a timely basis and the Board endeavors to take
necessary actions to ensure compliance with the required
practices and standards including the provisions of the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices introduced by the Stock
Exchange.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
Annual Report 2011
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Report of the Supervisory Committee

ESgWREE

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF JILIN PROVINCE HUINAN
CHANGLONG BIO-PHARMACY COMPANY LIMITED

(a joint stock limited company incorporated in the People’s
Republic of China with limited liabilities)

During the year ended 31 December 2011, in accordance with the
Company Law of the PRC, the requirements of the relevant laws
and regulations of Hong Kong and the articles of association of the
Company (the “relevant rules and regulations”), the Supervisory
Committee of the Company exercised conscientiously its
authority, safeguarded the interests of the shareholders of the
Company and the Company, and followed the principle of honesty
and integrity and worked cautiously and diligently.

During the year, we provided reasonable suggestions and advice
on the operations and development plans to the Directors and
strictly and effectively monitored whether the policies of the
Company had conformed with the relevant rules and regulations
or safeguarded the interests of the shareholders of the Company.

After investigation, we consider that the audited financial
statements of the Company give a true and fair picture of
the operating results and asset position of the Company. We
also consider that the Report of the Directors and the profit
distribution proposal meet the relevant rules and regulations. \We
have attended the meeting of the Board. We are of the opinion
that the meeting was convened in accordance with the relevant
rules and regulations. We consider that the members of the
Board, the general manager and other senior management of
the Company have strictly complied with the principle of honesty
and trustworthiness, worked diligently and sincerely exercised
their authority to the best interests of the Company. None of
the Directors, general manager nor other senior management of
the company have abused their powers, caused damage to the
interests of the Company and infringed upon the interests of the
Company shareholders and its staff, nor have they violated the
relevant rules and regulations.

We are satisfied with the various accomplishments and the
cost-effectiveness of the Company. We are confident that the
Company will have a good prospect of future development.

By order of the Supervisory Committee
Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited

Zhang Jing Zhou
Chairman

Jilin Province, the PRC
29 March 2012
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBEHRES

REANDA LAU & AU YEUNG

NZEZE&S (F8) SHAEBMARLF

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF JILIN PROVINCE HUINAN
CHANGLONG BIO-PHARMACY COMPANY
LIMITED

(a joint stock limited company incorporated in the People’s
Republic of China with limited liabilities)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Jilin
Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
set out on pages 38 to 111, which comprise the consolidated
and Company balance sheet as at 31 December 2011, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

36 Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
Annual Report 2011
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBEHRES

'{ REANDA LAU & AU YEUNG

NZZEEE (F8) SMEBAERLR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2011 and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Franklin Lau Shiu Wai
Director
Practising Certificate number P1886

Hong Kong, 29 March 2012
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEHEBARK

For the year ended 31 December 2011
S E——F A= —HIFFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAANRBZTR)
2011 2010
=25 —T-TF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bz ARET T AREEFTT
Turnover ] 4 274,294 200,630
Cost of sales SHE AR (44,207) (42,658)
Gross profit EF 230,087 157,972
Other income H g A 6 5,679 5,655
Other gains H bl 7 492 446
Distribution and selling costs DR SEERY (148,464) (94,306)
Administrative expenses TR (25,937) (26,307)
Profit from operations 4L R 61,857 43,460
Finance costs S I 8 (253) (178)
Profit before income tax FRLEF 9 61,604 43,282
Income tax expense Frgfist 10(a) (10,711) (7,391)
Profit for the year REEHEF 50,893 35,891
Other comprehensive income Hib 2wl A - -
Total comprehensive income for REEZEBAELE
the year 50,893 35,891
Profit attributable to: U A& R
Owners of the Company iN/NCIE 2N 50,893 35,891
Total comprehensive income DT EAEEBALLE :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ViN/NETETZEUN 50,893 35,891
Earnings per share HAREF|
— Basic (RMB cents) —EER(ARES) 11 9.08 6.41

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

meEEERER
As at 31 December 2011
R-F——F+=-H=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAERBEZETR)
2011 2010
—E2——F —E-FTF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
k3 AR%TT AREFT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Bearer biological assets T BEMEE 16 2,615 2,604
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB MR 17 82,728 55,330
Prepaid land lease payments yafrt LS 18 2,098 2,223
Construction in progress TEEIR 19 32,712 28,959
Intangible assets mEEE 21 18,714 24,135
Deposit for acquisition of LB -+ s {sh FRAE
land use rights "E 22 10,000 10,000
Other receivables, HiEWIE sl k
deposits and prepayments TEfRIE 26 2,100 5,100
150,967 128,251
Current assets REEE
Inventories T8 23 30,287 23,303
Trade receivables EUNE 5 25 101,092 91,323
Other receivables, HibEWIE sl k
deposits and prepayments TR 26 51,596 21,318
Loans receivables EUINE R 27 33,691 15,793
Prepaid land lease payments EN LA 18 125 125
Available-for-sale financial assets A ER A E 24 20,000 2,000
Cash and cash equivalents HekReZEED 28 70,059 97,659
306,850 251,421
Current liabilities REBAEE
Trade payables FEITE SRR 29 8,909 6,879
Other payables, deposits received E kI
and accruals 2WETe MEETE R 72,484 64,123
Income tax payable FERTFR1SHE 12,097 914
Other tax payables H b e Fi1E 13,941 8,166
Bank borrowings RITEE 30 1,000 -
Loans from government authority XTI RE & 3K 31 651 636
Dividend payable e B 325 330
109,407 81,048
Net current assets REBEETEE 197,443 170,373
Total assets less current liabilities #EERABHEE 348,410 298,624
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

meEEERER
As at 31 December 2011
R-F——F+=-H=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UANRBZETR)
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Biat AR®T T ARETF T
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Loans from government authority BT E R 31 5,419 6,054
Deferred tax liabilities FLERIRRE 32 484 956
5,903 7,010
Net assets EEFRE 342,507 291,614
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO RAREE AELERS
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
Share capital [N 33 56,025 56,025
Reserves EE 286,482 235,589
Total equity A 342,507 291,614

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 29 March 2012.

ZHANG HONG

6N
Director

EF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.
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Balance Sheet

EERAER
As at 31 December 2011
R-F——F+=-H=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UANREZETR)
2011 2010
—E2——F —E-TF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
ok ARMETF T AREEFIT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Bearer biological assets TR EMEE 16 2,615 2,504
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE NEE 17 82,728 55,330
Prepaid land lease payments Jat S 18 2,098 2,223
Construction in progress TEETRE 19 32,712 28,959
Investment in subsidiaries RETBRARMIRE 20 25,500 10,500
Intangible assets A E 21 18,714 24,135
Deposit for acquisition of land use 1 B + #th (55 PR A
rights e 22 10,000 10,000
Other receivables, deposits and HEmEWEIE - sTa Kk
prepayments TERTRIE 26 2,100 5,100
176,467 138,751
Current assets RBEE
Inventories T8 23 30,287 23,303
Trade receivables TEUNE SR 25 124,175 105,959
Other receivables, deposits and ﬁﬁﬁfﬂﬁlm CFlE Rk
prepayments BRI 26 49,893 20,906
Loans receivables EUE = 27 33,691 15,793
Prepaid land lease payments SEUN bz K i 18 125 125
Available-for-sale financial assets AN EEEE 24 20,000 2,000
Cash and cash equivalents HeRRSEEY 28 56,500 92,472
314,671 260,558
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables FERE SR 29 8,909 6,879
Other payables, deposits received HubpEzE - 2k
and accruals HES: cd';%;ﬁﬁ 71,739 63,721
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTB B A RIFkIE 20 24,660 9,990
Income tax payable FERFRSHEL 12,097 914
Other tax payables HE e IA 12,783 7,487
Bank borrowings RITEE 30 1,000 -
Loans from government authority BT H#EEE R 31 651 636
Dividend payable FETRZ B 325 330
132,164 89,957
Net current assets REEEFE 182,507 170,601
Total assets less current liabilities @EEERABAR 358,974 309,352
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Balance Sheet

EEAER

As at 31 December 2011
REF——F+=ZA=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UANEBZER)
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
ok ARMETF T AREFIT
Non-current liabilities ERBARE
Loans from government authority AT HE R B SR 31 5,419 6,054
Deferred tax liabilities BEIEFIEEE 32 484 956
5,903 7,010
Net assets EEFE 353,071 302,342
EQUITY EE
Share capital A&7 33 56,025 56,025
Reserves B 34 297,046 246,317
Total equity RETS AR 353,071 302,342

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 29 March 2012.

ZHANG HONG

N
Director

EE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

S Al 3L S
mEEREER
For the year ended 31 December 2011
Ber—F——Ff+—_A=+—HIFEZE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UANEEZT)
Statutory
Share Exchange surplus Retained
Share capital premium reserve reserve profits Total
A& R EE EifkE LTERRGHE RERF hy
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®Tr  AR®Trn  ARETR ARtz AR¥TR  ARET:R
(Note 33)  (Note 34(al) (Note 34)  (Note 34(b))
(Rz£33)  (Hfsta4(a)) (FizE34)  (HfsEa4l))
Balance at 1 January RZZ-2F
2010 —R—B&4 56,025 51,098 259 30,365 118,235 255,982
Comprehensiveincome ~ 2EYA
Profit for the year REREM - - - - 35,891 35,891
Other comprehensive Ht
income 2EEA
Disposal of a subsidiary HEMBAT - - (259) - - (259)
Total comprehensive income 2T AL - - (259) - 35,891 35,632
Appropriation to statutory  EHEETE
surplus reserve BERE - - - 2877 (2,.877) -
At 31 December RZZ-FF
2010 +-A=t—H 56,025 51,098 - 33,242 151,249 291,614
Balance at 1 January N_F——%&
2011 —A-BzEs 56,025 51,098 - 33,242 151,249 291,614
Comprehensive income ~ 2EHA
Profit for the year RERHM - - - - 50,893 50,893
Other comprehensive Hit
income 2EHA - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income 2T 5 - - - - 202,142 342,507
Appropriation to statutory ~ EHEATE
surplus reserve BERE - - - - = =
At 31 December RZZ——F
201 +-A=1-H 56,025 51,098 - 33,242 202,142 342,507

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AN e~ —1
b2 = Eﬁ@/)lbiﬂs—%
For the year ended 31 December 2011
Ber—F——Ff+—_A=+—HIFEZE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAERBEZETR)
2011 2010
—EB—-F —T-TF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Mzt AR®T ARETT
Cash from operating activities RETHEEZRERE
Profit before income tax PSR A 61,604 43,282
Adjustments for: HEIFE
Interest income FISBA 6 (2,380) (2,990)
Yield gain on available-for-sale AEHENEEE
financial assets EIEE 6 (220) (39)
Interest expenses MEZH 8 253 178
Written off and provision for obsolete and BERBETEMER
slow-moving inventories e 9 5,642 2,864
Additional provision for impairment EMES  HivElk
loss on trade, other receivables and tax FERARE RS
recoverable EEERE 9 2,997 9,284
Provision for impairment loss on loans R E R BB
receivables B 9 2,550 -
Amortisation of intangible assets BV EESEH 9 3,961 7,255
Impairment loss on intangible assets B EERESE 9 1,460 1,960
Impairment loss on property, plant and W - BE &E
equipment REEE 9 472 705
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments B L E S #E 9 125 125
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BE &R
neE 9 5,964 5,955
Fair value loss on biological EVEE—BATES
assets - deers B 7 42 38
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME BEN
equipment REEF 7 (534) (271)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEM B AR 7 = (213)
Government subsidy B fah 6 (1,842) (2,320)
Operating cash flows before working 2EESEBR 2L
capital changes Heng 80,094 65,813
Increase in inventories FEEM (12,606) (5,438)
Increase in trade receivables TEYE ZER T M (9,937) (12,802)
Increase in other receivables, HiEWHIE - s8Rk
deposits and prepayments FERFRIEL M (30,107) (2,774)
(Increasel/decrease in loans receivable JEWEZ (M) R (20,448) 2,357
Increase in trade payables FERE SERFIL M 2,030 171
Increase in other payables, HinfERZE - BET 2
deposits received and accruals et E R 2 8,361 8,054
Increase/(decrease) in other tax payables HApERBIEL N,/ ) 5,775 (34)
Cash generated from operations R EREL VIS 23,162 55,347
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AN e~ —1

b2 = Eﬁ@/)lbiﬂs—%

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BHE2—F——F+—_A=+—HIFEZF

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAERBEZETR)
2011 2010
—2——F —T-TF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Mzt AR®T ARBTT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHELEZRERE
Cash generated from operations REEBELEZRS 23,162 55,347
Interest paid BEfRFE 8 (253) (178)
Net cash generated from operating activities BETHEL R 22,909 55,169
Cash flows from investing activities REERELEZRERE
Purchase of bearer biological assets BETIEEMEE 16 (325) (373)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME  BELEE 17 (3,755) (1,157)
Purchase of construction in progress BEEEIR 19 (33,964) (3,009
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets BEAHHENKEE 24 (70,000) (20,000)
Proceeds from disposal of bearer biological assets &R 3L 4B EFSHIE 16 152 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEYE  BEMGRE
equipment FTiSsE 648 334
Proceeds from disposal of construction in progress  HERRITIZMETIE 19 18 107
Proceeds from settlement of available-for-sale HEANHNENBEE
financial assets FTiSsE 24 52,000 18,000
Disposal of a subsidiary HEWRBAR = (36)
Interest received BUFIE 6 2,380 2,990
Yield gain on available-for-sale financial assets At HE B A E B R 6 220 39
Net cash used in investing activities REEBMARSFE (52,626) (3,105)
Cash flows from financing activities RMEXBELEZRERE
Proceeds from government subsidy BB ET SR 6 1,842 2,320
Repayment of loans from government authority BERITHEER 31 (620) (300)
Dividends paid ERRE (5) (15)
Drawndown of bank borrowings RERITEE 30 1,000 -
Net cash generated from financing activities BEEEELE2RETE 2,217 2,005
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and fﬁﬁ&ﬁ%%fﬁ%
cash equivalents W)/ hRE (27,500) 54,069
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year F#RE&RELEEY 97,559 43,490
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ERBAERHALEEY 70,059 97,559
Analysis of the balance of cash and ReRBEELEEY
cash equivalents ERA
Cash and bank balances We KiRTTHH 70,059 97,559
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial — BEMI 2 Mzt B AR T EE 2 —&5H -
statements.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was established as a state-owned
enterprise in the People's Republic of China (the “PRC")
in 1989. On 29 December 1995, under the relevant
provisions of the Company Law of the PRC, the Company
was re-organised from a state-owned enterprise to a
limited liability company. On 16 August 1996, with the
approval of the Economic Restructuring Commission
of Jilin Province, the Company was further converted
into a joint stock limited company. On 20 April 1999,
the Company made a bonus issue from capitalisation of
retained profits in the proportion of one bonus share for
every two existing shares.

The Company’s H shares are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (“GEM") of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 24 May
2001.

The Company is principally engaged in the manufacture
and distribution of biochemical medicines in the PRC
under the brand names of Changlong and Shendi. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note
20.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS") (which includes
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS") and
Interpretation) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Company Ordinance. These
consolidated financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of
the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
Annual Report 2011
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by certain biological assets and available-
for-sale financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the group’s accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

In 2011, the Group adopted the new and amended

standards, interpretations to the published

standards and the improvements to HKFRS which
are relevant to its operation.

HKFRS 1 (amendment) Amendment to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards — Limited
Exemption from Comparative
HKFRS 7 Disclosures for First-
time Adopters

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

HK(IFRICH-Int 14
amendments

Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 14
Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement

Amendments to a number of
HKFRSs issued in May 2010

Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010

The adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs has
had no significant financial effect on these financial
statements.

2. EXETEEHBEGE)

(b)

(c)
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(c) Change in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)
New standards, amendments to standards
and interpretations
At the date of authorisation of this consolidated
financial statements, the following new or revised
HKAS and HKFRS, amendments and interpretation
to existing HKAS and HKFRS have been issued but
are not yet effective:

HKAS 1 (amendments) Presentation of Financial

HKAS 1 (amendments)

HKAS 12 (amendments)

HKAS 19 (revised 2011)

HKAS 27 (revised 2011)

HKAS 28 (revised 2011)

HKAS 32 (amendments)

Statements (effective from
1 January 2013)

Amendments to HKAS 1
Presentation of Financial
Standards - Presentation of
Items of Other Comprehensive
Income (effective from
1 January 2013)

Income Taxes (effective from
1 January 2012)

Employee Benefits (effective from
1 January 2013)

Separate Financial Statements
(effective from 1 January 2013)

Associates and Joint Ventures
(effective from 1 January 2013)

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation -
Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities (effective
from 1 January 2014)

48 Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)

EXSBEREE(E)

(c) Change in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

New standards, amendments to standards

(c) EFBRREEZSE(H)

HaTER ~ ZERIEETR 21

and interpretations (continued) (#&)
HKFRS 1 (amendment) Amendments to HKFRS 1 First- EENBREEY BENBREEIE
time Adoption of Hong Kong FIRBIIR)  REAFHZEY
Financial Reporting Standards BHEER - 5E
- Severe Hyperinflation and BEERBREL
Removal of Fixed Dates for First- o eEE a8
time Adopters (effective from #IEET(B2012461
1 January 2012) A1BREER)
HKFRS 7 (amendments)  Disclosure - Transfer of BERUBREEN BRE-SREEER
Financial Assets (effective from ETRERR) (B2012%1 818
1 January 2012) FRER)
HKFRS 7 Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial EENBMEER BENBREENF
{amendments) Instruments: Disclosures - ETR(BEIA) TREBIE-F
Offsetting Financial Assets and F-HcEE
Financial Liabilities (effective REFEEHET
from 1 January 2013) (820131418
BER)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (effective EERBMEED SBMIA(B20155
from 1 January 2015) E95 ATERER)
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements BRUBREE] GeMBERE
(effective from 1 January 2013) F105 (B2013F1A18
BER)
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements (effective EERBREEN AERH(B20135F
from 1 January 2013) FN5 1A1BREER)
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in EENBREER RE0ER ERC
Other Entities (effective from F125% RE(F2013F
1 January 2013) 1A1BEER)
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement (effective BRUBREEN ATEHNE
from 1 January 2013) £13%; (B2013F1A18
AN

The Group did not early adopt any of these new or
revised HKAS and HKFRS, amendments and
interpretation to existing HKAS and HKFRS.
Management is currently assessing the financial
impact of these revisions to the Group's financial
position and performance.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(d)

(e)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special
purpose entities) over which the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies
generally accompanying a shareholding of more
than one half of the voting rights. The existence
and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible are considered
when assessing whether the Group controls
another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method of
accounting to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. ldentifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in
a business combination are measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition date. The
Group recognises any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of acquiree's identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(e)

(f)

Subsidiaries (continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired
in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is
recognised directly in the income statement.

Intercompany transactions, balances and income
and expenses on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Profits and losses
resulting from intercompany transactions that are
recognised assets are also eliminated. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

In the Company's balance sheet, the investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision
for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.

Transactions with non-controlling interests
The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests as transactions with equity owners of the
Group. For purchases from non-controlling
interests, the difference between any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying
value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded
in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in equity.
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52

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f)

(9)

Transactions with non-controlling interests
(continued)

When the Group ceases to have control or
significant influence, any retained interest in the
entity is remeasured to its fair value at the date
when control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value
is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.

If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

Biological assets

Biological assets are living animals and plants
managed by the Group which is involved in the
agricultural activities of the transformation of
biological assets for sale or into agricultural product.

Biological assets are measured at fair value less
estimated point-of-sale costs at initial recognition
and at each balance sheet date. The fair value
of these biological assets is determined based
on active market prices in the local market with
reference to comparable age, breed and genetic
merit. The gain or loss arising on initial recognition
and subsequent changes in fair values less
estimated point-of-sale costs of biological assets is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
it arise. Biological assets that are in the stage of
cultivation or do not have a quoted market price in
an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured are recognised in the balance
sheet at cost less any impairment losses.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h)

(i)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs
are included in the assets carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part
is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance
are charged to the statement of comprehensive
income during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their costs or revalued amounts
to their residual value over their estimated useful
lives. The assets’ residual values and useful lives
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period. The principal annual
rates are as follows:

Buildings 10 to 30 years
Plant and machinery 10 years
Transportation equipment 8 years
Furniture, fixtures and 5 years

equipment

An assets carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gain or loss on the disposal are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised in the income statement of
comprehensive income.

Prepaid land lease payments

Prepaid land lease payments under operating
leases are initially stated at historical cost and
subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms.
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54

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(i

(k)
(i)

(i)

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents buildings,
plant and equipment under construction and
pending installation, and is stated at historical cost
less any impairment losses. No depreciation is
made on construction in progress until such time
as the relevant property, plants and equipment are
available for use. Cost comprises all construction
expenditure and other direct costs of construction.
Construction in progress is transferred to the
appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when the asset being constructed
becomes available to use.

Intangible assets

Purchased know-how and prescription
Purchased know-how and prescription are stated
at historical cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses. Amortisation is charged
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives, which range from 5 to 12 years from the date
of commercial production. The estimated useful
life and amortisation method are reviewed at the
end of each balance sheet date, with the effect of
any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised
as an expense in the financial period in which it is
incurred. Expenditure on development activities is
capitalised if the product or process is technically
and commercially feasible and the Group has
sufficient resources and the intention to complete
development. The expenditure capitalised
includes the costs of materials, direct labour, and
appropriate proportion of overheads and borrowing
costs, where applicable. Capitalised development
costs are stated at historical cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation
begins when development is completed and the
assets is available for use. Other development
expenditure is recognised as an expense in the
financial period in which it is incurred.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(k)
(iii)

n

(m)

Intangible assets (continued)

Purchased in-process research and
development assets acquired through
separate purchase

In-process research and development assets
acquired through separate purchase are recognised
as intangible assets at historical cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

Amortisation and impairment assessment are
accounted for in a similar manner as internal
development expenditure set out in (ii) above.

Impairment of assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for
example, goodwill or intangible assets not ready to
use — are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment. Assets that are subject
to amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’'s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purpose
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at each reporting date.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the weighted average cost formula. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress comprises
raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and
related production overheads (based on normal
operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(n)
(i)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Financial assets

Classification

The group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables, and available for
sale. The classification depends on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are fair value through profit or loss
are financial assets held for trading. A financial
asset is classified in this category if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short
term. Derivatives are also categorised as held for
trading unless they are designated as hedges.
Assets in this category are classified as current
assets if expected to be settled within 12 months;
otherwise, they are classified as non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for the amounts
that are settled or expected to be settled more
than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-current assets.
The group's loans and receivables comprise “trade
and other receivables”, “loan receivables” and
"“cash and cash equivalents” in the balance sheet.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current assets
unless the investment matures or management
intends to dispose of it within 12 months of the
end of the reporting period.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(n) Financial assets (continued)
(i)  Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade-date — the date
on which the group commits to purchase or sell
the asset. Investments are initially recognised at
fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value,
and transaction costs are expensed in the income
statement. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred
and the group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale
financial assets and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are subsequently carried at
fair value. Loans and receivables are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of the “financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss” category are presented in the
income statement within “other (losses)/gains —
net” in the period in which they arise. Dividend
income from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is recognised in the income statement
as part of other income when the group’s right to
receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available for sale
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included in
the income statement as “gains and losses from
investment securities”.
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(UANREZTR)
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(n)  Financial assets (continued)

(i)  Recognition and measurement (continued)
Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised
in the income statement as part of other income.
Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments
are recognised in the income statement as part
of other income when the group’s right to receive
payments is established.

(iii)  Impairment of financial assets

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
“loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that
there is objective evidence of an impairment loss
include:

° Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
obligor;

° A breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

o The Group, for economic or legal reasons

relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
granting to the borrower a concession that
the lender would not otherwise consider;
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(n) Financial assets (continued)
(iii)  Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

° It becomes probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

o The disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties; or

o Observable data indicating that there is
a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from a portfolio of
financial assets since the initial recognition
of those assets, although the decrease
cannot yet be identified with the individual
financial assets in the portfolio, including:

(i) adverse changes in the payment
status of borrowers in the portfolio;

(ii) national or local economic conditions
that correlate with defaults on the
assets in the portfolio.

The Group first assesses whether objective
evidence of impairment exists.

For loans and receivable category, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. The asset’'s carrying amount of the
asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the consolidated income statement. If
a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group may measure impairment
on the basis of an instrument'’s fair value using an
observable market price.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(n)
(iii)

(iv)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Impairment testing of trade and other receivables is
described in note 3b.

Assets classified as available-for-sale

The group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. For debt securities, the group uses the
criteria refer to (a) above. In the case of equity
investments classified as available-for-sale, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of the security below its cost is also evidence
that the assets are impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on the that
financial asset previously recognised in profit or
loss — is removed from equity and recognised in
the profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised
in the consolidated income statement on equity
instruments are not reversed through the
consolidated income statement. If, in a subsequent
period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified
as available-for-sale increases and the increase can
be objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised in profit or
loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the
consolidated income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(n)
(iv)

(o)

(p)

Financial assets (continued)

Assets classified as available-for-sale
(continued)

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries or associates is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary or associate in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statement
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’'s net assets
including goodwill.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks, and other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. In
the consolidated balance sheet, bank overdrafts
are shown within “bank borrowings” in current
liabilities.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current
and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the company’s subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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62

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(p)

(q)

Current and deferred income tax
(continued)

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However deferred tax liabilities
are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. The deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (or laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and
are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention
to settle the balances on a net basis.

Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration,
restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised
when: the group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events; it is probable
that an outflow of resource will be required to
settle the obligation; and the amount has been
reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions
comprised lease termination penalties and
employee termination payments. Provisions are
not recognised for future operating losses.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(q)

(r)
(i)

(ii)

Provisions (continued)

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. a provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The
increase in the provision due to passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB"), which is the
Company’s functional and the group’s presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement,
except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash
flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(r)
(ii)

(iii)

Foreign currency translation (continued)
Transactions and balances (continued)
Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the income statement within “finance
income or cost”. All other foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in the income statement
within “other gains and /(losses)”.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as
available for sale are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the
amortised cost of the security and other changes
in the carrying amount of the security. Translation
differences related to changes in amortised
cost are recognised in profit or loss, and other
changes in carrying amount are rcognised in other
comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in
profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets, such as equities classified as available for
sale, are included in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(a) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that balance sheet;
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(r)

(iii)

(s)

Foreign currency translation (continued)

Group companies (continued)

(b) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the
dates of the transactions); and

(c) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment
in foreign operations, and of borrowings and
other currency instruments designated as
hedges of such investments, are taken to other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is
partially disposed of or sold, exchange differences
that were recorded in equity are recognised in the
income statements part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.

Government grants

Grants from the PRC government are recognised
at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the
Group will comply with the attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred
and recognised in the income statement over the
period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants that compensate the Group
for the costs of an asset are deducted from the
carrying amount of the asset and consequently
are effectively recognised in profit or loss over
the useful life of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expenses.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(t)
(i)

(ii)

Employee benefits

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme") under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its
employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ relevant
income and are expensed in the income statement
as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group's employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

In addition, pursuant to the government regulations
in the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC"),
the Group is required to contribute an amount to
certain retirement benefit schemes based on the
wages for the year of those employees in the
PRC. The local municipal government undertakes
to assume the retirement benefits obligations of
those employees of the Group. Contributions to
these retirement benefits schemes are charged
to the statement of comprehensive income as
incurred.
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(AARBEZET)
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(t) Employee benefits (continued)
(i)  Pension obligations (continued)
The employee’s of the Group’s which operates
in the PRC are required to participate in the
state-managed retirement scheme operated by
the local municipal government. Contributions
are made based on a certain percentage of the
payroll costs and are charged to the statement of
comprehensive income as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the state-managed
retirement scheme.
(u) Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently carried at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that it is probable that some or all of the
facilities will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is
deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent
there is no evidence that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services
and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Company has an unconditional right
to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the end of the reporting period.

2.

EXRETTHREREE(E)
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(v) Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of
that person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a
parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members
of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or
of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint
ventures of the same third party;

(iv) the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;
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(UANREZT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(v)

(w)

(x)

Related parties (continued)
(b) the party is an entity where any of the
following conditions applies: (continued)

(v) the entity controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in
(a); and

(Vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale
of goods and services in the ordinary course of
the Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of
value-added tax, returns, rebates and discounts
and after eliminating sales with the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity
and when specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group’s activities as described below. The
Group bases its estimates on historical results,
taking into consideration the type of customer,
the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

(i) Sales of goods
Sales revenue is recognised when the
merchandise is delivered and title has been
passed to the customers.

(iij)  Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Accounts
payable are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If
not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.
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2.

70

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(y) Segment reporting
Operating segment, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group's
most senior executive management for the
purpose of allocating resources to, and assessing
the performance of, the Group’s various line of
business and geographical locations.

(z)  Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company's
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the
Group's financial statements in the period in which
the dividends are approved by the Company's
shareholders.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continuously evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

(a) Impairment of assets (other than trade and
other receivables)
The Group tests annually whether assets have
suffered any impairment in accordance with
the accounting policy stated in note 2(l). The
recoverable amounts of cash-generating units
have been determined based on value-in-use
calculations. The value-in-use calculation requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present
value, which has been prepared on the basis of
management’s assumptions and estimates.
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Impairment of trade and other receivables

Provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables is made based on assessment of
the recoverability of trade receivables and other
receivables. The identification of doubtful debts
requires management judgement and estimates.
Where the actual outcome or expectation in
future is different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the carrying value of trade
receivables and other receivables and doubtful
debt expenses/written back in the period in which
the estimate has been changed.

Estimation of useful lives of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets

The Group’s management determines the
estimated useful lives and related depreciation or
amortisation charges for its property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets. This estimate
is based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment and
purchase know-how and prescription of similar
nature and functions. It could change significantly
as a result of technical innovations and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management will increase the depreciation or
amortisation charge where useful lives are less
than previously estimated lives, or it will write-off
or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Income taxes

The Company is subject to income tax in the PRC.
Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for income tax. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain. The Company
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact
the current and deferred income tax assets and
liabilities in the period in which such determination is
made.

3.
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B RS R R B

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UANREZTR)
4. TURNOVER 4. B
The principal activities of the Group are manufacture and REEFBEBRUERDHE( L
distribution of biochemical medicines. Revenue represents Yo WAIEIHERmMERE - WERE
the invoiced value of merchandise sold less allowances for BHRE - T - BED K E A HE A8
returns, discounts, value-added tax and other sales related HIER & ©
taxes.
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T AREEFTT
Sales of medicine BYNIHE 274,294 200,630
5. SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. PEEHR
The Group has only one business segment which is the AEBRE (A% H%E - AR ERE
manufacture and distribution of biochemical medicines in MAHEfEY) - HE_T——FR=F
the PRC. During the years ended 31 December 2011 and —SFE+ A=+ —RAILtEE  AEEE
2010, turnover of the Group is generated entirely from X2 RARBZIEE BASEMA
sales in the PRC and all identifiable assets of the Group Al R EEBM AR - Fit - WEZ5
are located in the PRC. Accordingly, no business and EkE o EER - WEHERS R &
geographical segments information is presented. This is KEFHRAEEERITHEREANLZ
consistent with the way in which information is reported WER TR -5
internally to the group’s top management for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment.
6. OTHER INCOME 6. Hug A
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
Recovery of bad debts previously g B = i s 2 BR
written off 992 163
Bank interest income ERITFBULA 706 294
Government subsidy (Note) RS+ L (A7 5E) 1,842 2,320
Interest income on loan receivables FEIE SR B A 1,674 2,696
Yield gain on available-for-sale A S EER R
financial assets 220 39
Others HAith 245 143
5,679 5,655
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group Bt RBE-F——F+-_A=+—HIF
received subsidies from various local municipal government & - ANEEES R E AR TR AT
bodies in the PRC, which aimed at the general financing of WED  BEERAEENEB LR ER
the business and technology development of the Group. RE-—REES -
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

7. OTHER GAINS 7. Hhl s
2011 2010
—2——F% ZZTZF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
k3 AR®T T ARETFT
Fair value losses on biological EMBEE—EBZAFE
assets — deers &8 16 (42) (38)
Gains on disposal of property, HEWX - BB REE
plant and equipment B 534 271
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEMB AR 36 - 213
492 446
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. & A
2011 2010
—E——F ZE—FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFTT
Interest expenses on loans from BT EER TS B A
government authority 253 178
ENEBEREE(CEERDGERAR 73
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B RS R R B

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREZT)
9. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. FEHAIRA
2011 2010
—F——F —TZF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

Hrat ARET T ARETT

Operating profit before income tax ~ BFT1SHI AT 2 RFLL L
for the year is arrived at after- MBI GEA)
charging/(crediting):— TF|&mE: —

Cost of inventories sold (excluding B HEFERA(TEIERY

additional provision for, and hns KRR E &

write off of obsolete and IR

slow-moving inventories) 40,407 40,439
Provision for obsolete and REE R

slow-moving inventories TS SR 23 2,897 2,864
Write off of obsolete and MhsEEEZE R

slow-moving inventories HIETEE 23 2,745 -
Impairment loss on loans receivables FEU & 72 FiE K12 27 2,550 -
Impairment loss on trade receivables FEWE 5 8E 72 FiE KR 25 168 2,721
Impairment loss on other receivables Eth FEUSFRIA 2 J8i (B &5 18 26 1,762 3,009
Impairment loss on deposit and 7l & RIEMFIEZRE

prepayment i 26 1,067 -
Impairment loss on property, Y% - BB RERERE

plant and equipment E518 17 472 705
Provision for tax recoverable L EE L = 3,554
Auditor's remuneration:— AN S - —
Provision for the year FNEE 300 254
Under-provision in prior years BEFEREETR = 21
Amortisation of intangible assets A A

(included in cost of sales) (B ASHERA) 21 3,961 7,255
Impairment loss on intangible assets M2 & B R EE B 21 1,460 1,960
Research and development cost MEER 545 503
Amortisation of prepaid land lease ~ JE{ - FA S8y

payments (included in cost of sales) (¥l ASHERA) 18 125 125
Depreciation of property, Yz - WE &

plant and equipment HiETE 17 5,964 5,955
Employee benefits expenses BITEHMNER

(excluding directors’ and (MEEEER

supervisors’ remuneration): EEWE) :
Salaries and allowances e RORRL 14 67,003 44,665
Pension scheme contributions RIRES B 15 575 669
Fair value losses on EMEE—EZ

biological assets — deers N EEBE 16 42 38
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE  HER

plant and equipment BABEF 7 (534) (271)
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10.

(a) Income tax represents:

Frig®is

FreBiads
2011 2010
—g-——% —T %F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBETTT

PRC enterprise income tax A Bl SEFTISAR
— Current year —AFE 11,183 8,441
— Over-provision in prior years — EFZIREE - (507)
Deferred taxation (Note 32) RIERIIE (M171£32) (472) (543)
10,711 7,391

The PRC enterprise income tax is provided
according to the relevant laws and regulations in
the PRC.

On 16 March 2007, the National People’s Congress
approved the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law,
which became effective from 1 January 2008.
In accordance with the new tax law, an unified
enterprise income tax rate of 25% is applied to
both domestic-invested enterprises and foreign-
invested enterprises.

On 24 July, 2009, the Company was accredited as
a "National New and High-tech Enterprise” by the
Jilin Provincial Science and Technology Bureau (&
MERIERTEE) and is entitled to a reduced PRC
Enterprise Income tax rate of 15% for the year
ended 31 December 2011 (2010: 15%).

PEIMEMEHIMRIETBEBRE
REOERERE -

RZZEZLF=ZA+A 2HA

SRIEPRECEMSRIE - B
—EENF—HA—HBEK - RIE
IRLE - FTBRNE RINE S ERE
— PR 25 % BN ZEFTISF ©

AARKRZZEZNFEAZTEA
EEMEMBRMBEERERSH
¥ ARARBE-_T——F
T A=+ -BUEFETRRET
BEEAEHREE15%HMBIE
(ZF—FF :16%) °
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 10. FBBHXH (&)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) HEXHESHEMNREAHR
accounting profit at applicable tax rate: REERMT :
2011 2010
—ET——F ZE-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARETT
Profit before income tax R FT 1S5 Al Vs £ 61,604 43,282
National tax calculated at PRC LB PEMEHE15%
enterprise income tax rate of 15% (ZZ—ZTF : 15%)
(2010: 15%) STEMER 9,241 6,492
Tax effect of non-taxable income BERBRBRABDR IS E - (537)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses ~B] F1H: 5 2 BT 76 S 2 1,942 2,486
Deferred tax on temporary differences BTG EHFZ5H 2
in prior year EIERTE (472) (543)
Over-provision in prior years KELIREE - (507)
Income tax expense FriSfisz i 10,711 7,391

11. EARNINGS PER SHARE
The calculation of basic earnings per share for the
year ended 31 December 2011 is based on the profit
attributable to owners of the Group for the year of
RMB50,893,000 (2010: RMB35,891,000) and 560,250,000
shares in issue during the year (2010: 560,250,000
shares).

Diluted earnings per share is not presented as there were
no dilutive potential ordinary shares in existence during the
years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010.

12. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY
Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2011 includes a profit of
RMB50,729,000 (2010: RMB32,882,000) which has been
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company
(Note 34).
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13. DIVIDENDS 13. KE
No dividend has been proposed or paid by the Company in RARUEPTEBIERNBE_ZT——F
respect of the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010: Nil). T AT —BLEEEZEMNKRE(ZE

—EEE)

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 14. EERSRITHAEMS

REMUNERATION
(a) Directors’ remuneration (a) EEME
Details of remuneration paid to the Directors of AEERARBSESEZ Nz
the Company, which were all below HK$1,000,000 ¥91K741,000,0008 L (RBEZF
(equivalent to RMB811,000 for the year ended 31 —FF+ZA=+—HIEFEEE
December 2011 and RMB846,000 for the year RARES11,000 M REZE =T
ended 31 December 2010) and disclosed pursuant —ZEF+-A=+—HILFEHEE
to the GEM Listing Rules and Section 161 of the R ARES846,0007T ) IR 15 BIZER
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, are as follows:— ETRAIREERRHENIE161(&
WEE - HFHEWT
2011 —E——fF
Salaries,
allowances Pension
Directors’ and other fund 2011
fees benefits contributions Total
e 2R —E——fF
EEHE RHMFRE EARSHN He
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR¥ETR ARETR AR%BTxR
Executive Directors: HITEF -
Zhang Hong g aA - 38 16 54
Zhang Xiao Guang RN - 220 12 232
Zhao Bao Gang R - 162 1 173
Tian Xin Guo T E - 445 12 457
Chen Qi Ming [RERER - 162 1 173
Wu Guo Wen REIX - 92 11 103

Independent Non-Executive 7 3EHTEE -

Directors:
Shen Yu Xiang hEH - 135 - 135
Yan Li Jin Hes - 10 - 10
Xue Chang Qing BRE - 8 - 8

1,272 73 1,345
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14. DIRECTORS’' AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’' 14. EZEEREHRTHAEME (E)
REMUNERATION (continued)
(a) Directors’ remuneration (continued) (a) E=EEN€(E)

2010 —B-EF

Salaries,

allowances Pension
Directors’ and other fund 2010
fees benefits  contributions Total
Eo = —E-FF
Exme  REMFE RBASHER Bile
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREBTT ARBTT ARBTT

Executive Directors: HITEE
Zhang Hong 534 - 46 14 60
Zhang Xiao Guang SRS - 100 11 111
Zhao Bao Gang R - 106 " 117
Tian Xin Guo HETE - 354 12 366
Liang Fu Xiang (Resigned on 21&# (M_ZE—ZF

15 November 2010) T—ATHBEHE) - 174 11 185
Chen Qi Ming PR A - 123 " 134
Wu Guo Wen REIX - 129 11 140

Independent Non-Executive BB TESE -

Directors:
Shen Yu Xiang LER - 106 - 106
Yan Li Jin BeEe - - - -
Xue Chang Qing BRE - - - -
- 1,138 81 1,219
There were no arrangements under which HE—ZT——FR-F-TF+=
a director waived or agreed to waive any A=+—RALFE  #HEEHES
emoluments, and no incentive payment or WEXRERETAME 225
compensation for loss of office was paid or T B E S BB 2 e
payable to any director during the years ended 31 AT SEE S f(E o

December 2011 and 2010.
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’

REMUNERATION (continued)

(b)  Senior executives’ remuneration
Details of remuneration paid to the Supervisors of
the Company which were all below HK$1,000,000
(equivalent to RMB811,000 for the year ended 31
December 2011 and RMB846,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2010) are as follows:—

14. EBERSRITRAEME(E)

(b)

BRITHAEMS

FEERARBSEEL N2
K 21,000,000 0 (REE—Z
—— &+ - A=+—HILEEEE
RARKESI1,000hREE-Z
—SE+ A=+ BILEEEE
R ARBS846,0007T) @ HEEBW

2011 - _&
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and other fund 2011
benefits contributions Total
e SRR -5
EEMFIE  BASMHK M
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR®T T AR®T T
Supervisors: EE:
Zhang Jing Zhou sRE= M 73 - 73
Li Bao Hai TES 24 7 31
Wu Wei Men RER 21 7 28
118 14 132
2010 —E-ZF
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and other fund 2010
benefits  contributions Total
e - RRL —E-TF
REMFZE  ERESER RN
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT ARETFTT AREETTT
Supervisors: EF:
Zhang Jing Zhou RS 52 - 52
Li Bao Hai TEF 24 6 30
Wu Wei Men RER 26 6 32
102 12 114

There were no arrangements under which
a Supervisor waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments, and no incentive payment or
compensation for loss of office was paid or payable
to any supervisor during the years ended 31
December 2011 and 2010.

BE-T —FR-TFF+Z
A=1—RILFE  HEFHEES
REXFBREEMME 2 25k -
IR L B 2 BERE s
TSR Sk A E -
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14.

15.

16.

80

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’

REMUNERATION (continued)

(¢c)  Five highest paid individuals
The five highest paid individuals during the year
included five Directors (2010: five Directors) whose
remuneration is set out in (a) above.

During the years ended 31 December 2011 and
2010, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
these highest paid employees as an inducement to
join, or upon joining the Group, or as compensation
for loss of office.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES
Employees of the Group are members of a state-
managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the
PRC government, or in the case of the employees in Hong
Kong, a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefits scheme (“MPF scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets
of the MPF scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group is
required to contribute a certain percentage of its payroll to
the retirement benefits schemes to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefits schemes is to make the required contributions
under the schemes. The employer’s contributions vest
fully once they are made. At 31 December 2011 and 2010,
no forfeited contributions were available to reduce the
contributions payable in future years.

The Group's contribution to retirement benefits schemes
for the year ended 31 December 2011 amounted to
RMB575,000 (2010: RMB669,000).

BEARER BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

Bearer biological assets comprise:

14.

15.

16.

EERERITRAEMS (B)

(c) HEESFMAL
FAEEEHMALRIERE
(T -ZTF 5REF)ZEN
& FFHIBRN L3 ()& -

HE-_ZT——FR-_Z—ZTF+=
A=Z+—ALFE  AEEER
Z i E B X TN e A
HEIASRIIAKREER 2 58E -
SYERERL 2 F1E -

RAEFRIHE
AEEREREATERNFEENEREER
REAFFEINAKE - MEEREERAIRE
BREHMERE ST ERPIR T @ ER
e A ERRE(TRBEEFTE])HK
B - gt SINEERAREBENEET)
R—EBIEENEESRIFE - AEE
ARESNTENET AN LHZRIRE
FEHBIHFIA BB IARH - NREBENZ
BNENFT AR ME— R EIRE %S
TELIEE IR o B ZMHFNEL RS
BEEFRE KRB FR-_ZZF
TZA=1+—8  XEEEFDSRKRHRA
FREBRAR R FZ B K o

REBEE-_ZE——F+-_A=+—HLEF
B AEBMZAHRIKERGFEIHZKA
ARMB75000T(—E—FF : ARK
669,0007T) °

TRRENEE
FrAEMEEDE -

The Group and the Company

AEERAQT
2011 2010
—E——F —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETFT
Deers — immature, at fair value e —RKE - RATHE - 6
Deers — mature, at fair value - - mATE - 188
Ginseng, at cost A2 ANME 2,070 1,758
Vineyard, at cost BE  RKAE 545 552
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—HZEEE 2,615 2,504
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16. BEARER BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued) 16. ATRBEVMEEE)
Reconciliation of carrying amounts of bearer biological T B EEERBEEYSR
assets:
The Group and the Company
FEBRAQT]
2011 2010
£ —E-FF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREEFTT
Deers 533
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEEE 194 232
Loss arising from changes in fair value N EEEHEL S5 B

less estimated point-of-sale costs (HEHH SRR AEEZ

attributable to physical changes BB (K7 X9)

(Notes 7 and 9) (42) (92)
Gain arising from changes in NHEZEFERE

fair value less estimated point-of-sale SIB Z (hETIHE S

costs attributable to price changes B ARE S 2 WS (M2 7 5%9)

(Notes 7 and 9) = 54
Decrease due to sales & T pE (152) -
Carrying amount at 31 December W+=—A=+—HZEAA - 194
Ginseng AZ
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HZEAE 1,758 1,414
Additions during the year FHRRE 312 344
Carrying amount at 31 December Rt A=+—HZEAA 2,070 1,758
Vineyard B8
Carrying amount at 1 January RN—A—HZEEE 552 523
Additions during the year FRRNE 13 29
Harvested grapes transferred to ERmEEERETE

inventories (20) -
Carrying amount at 31 December R+=—A=t+—RZKHEE 545 552

2,615 2,504

The carrying amounts of immature and mature deers
were valued at market values with reference to prices
in the local market of comparable age and breed. The
carrying amounts of ginseng and vineyard were valued at
their original costs. These assets are in their early stage
of cultivation and preparation and active market prices are
not available. In addition, the Directors are of the view that
the original costs would approximate their fair values at
this stage of their development.

AKERKEREZEEESZE TS
B FEHEmE 2 ERETMENE - A
2L BBNREERNIGRATHE - 25
BERNEEIEFVS - B EEET
B - B4 EFRB/NERARATEFRER
ABERER 2 NTERS °
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. Y%  BERXHE
Furniture,
Plantand Transportation fixtures and
Buildings ~ machinery  equipment  equipment Total
HE £ER
BT BERES EaRk B b
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBETT  ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR
The Group T£E
Cost: A
At 1 January 2010 W=E-2F—-f—-H 55,606 46,634 3424 1811 107,475
Transfer from construction BREATRTR
in progress (Note 19) (Hiz19) - 342 - - 342
Additions s - 1131 - 2 1,157
Disposals HE - (40) (535) (64) (639)
At 31 December 2010 R-Z-FF+-A=t-H 55,606 48,067 2,889 1773 108,335
Transfer from construction EREERTR
in progress (Note 19) (Hiz#19) 18,017 12,176 - - 30,193
Additions R - 3,465 - 290 3,755
Disposals e (142) 43) - - (185)
At 31 December 2011 RZE—F+ZA=+—H 73481 63,665 2,889 2,063 142,098
Accumulated depreciation: ZiHE
At 1 January 2010 W=E-2F—-f—-H 10,891 32,883 1677 1470 46,921
Charge for the year (Note 9) ERZHI29) 1748 3815 295 97 5,955
Written back on disposals HERE - ) (508) (64) (576)
Impairment (Note 9) FEE9) - 705 - - 705
At 31 December 2010 RZE-FF+-A=+-H 12,639 37,399 1464 1,503 53,005
Charge for year (Note 9 FRsIRMEY) 2176 3,436 266 g7 5,964
Written back on disposals HERD 30) 41) - - 7)
Impairment (Note 9) FE29) - 472 - - 472
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F+-A=+-H 14,785 41,266 1719 1,600 59,370
Carrying amount: R
At31 Decernber 2011 RZF-——F+ZA=1-A 58,696 2239 1,170 463 82,728
At 31 December 2010 RZE-FF+-A=1—H 42,967 10,668 1425 270 55,330

82
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. #%¥ - - BERRE(E)

(continued)
Furniture,
Plantand Transportation fixtures and
Buildings ~ machinery  equipment  equipment Total
BE £ER
BT BEREES EaRE B b
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARETR ARETT  ARETR
The Company N
Cost; A
At 1 January 2010 RZE-ZF—F—H 55,606 46,634 3,424 1,747 107,411
Transfer from construction BREATEIR
in progress (Note 19) (Hiz19) - 342 - - 342
Additions R - 1,131 - 26 1,157
Disposals HE - (40) (535) - (575)
At 31 December 2010 R-E-FF+-A=1+—H 55,606 48,067 2,889 1,773 108,335
Transfer from construction BRETERIE
in progress (Note 19) (Ht19) 18,017 12,176 - - 30,193
Additions BA - 3,465 - 290 3,755
Disposals it (142) 43) - - (185)
At 31 December 2011 RZE——E+ZA=1-H 73,481 63,665 2,889 2,063 142,098
Accumulated depreciation: ZEE
At 1 January 2010 WZE-2F—-F—-H 10,891 32,883 1677 1410 46,861
Charge for the year FRTH 1748 3815 295 %3 5,951
Written back on disposal HERD - ) (508) - (512)
Impairment BB - 705 - - 705
At31 December 2010 RoZ-SETAZt-B 12639 3739 1,464 158 53005
Charge for the year FRTH 2,176 3436 255 97 5,964
Written back on disposal HERE (30) (41) - - (1)
Impairment Bl - 472 - - 472
At 31 December 2011 RZE—%+-A=1+-H 14,785 41,266 1,719 1,600 59,370
Carrying amount; FEE:
At 31 December 2011 RZE——E+ZA=1-H 58,696 22,399 1,170 463 82,728
At 31 December 2010 RZE-F5+-A=1-H 42,967 10,668 1425 270 55,330
The buildings of the Group and the Company are situated REBRARNBVEFA AR 2 IR L
on parcels of land in the PRC in which the Group and the REERARNBFEEEBAME 2P T
Company held medium-term land use rights (Note 18). R (FIEE18) ©
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18. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 18. FEfLTHHEE
The Group and
the Company
AEBRARQT
RMB'000
AREETTT
Cost: AN
At 1 January 2010, RZE—ZFF—H—RH - =%
31 December 2010 and —ZF+A=+—HEZ=
31 December 2011 ET——E+=-A=+—H 3,631
Accumulated amortisation: RETEY
At 1 January 2010 R-E—ZF—HF—H 1,058
Charge for the year (Note 9) FAZHE(MEE9) 125
At 31 December 2010 RZE—ZFF+_A=1+—H 1,183
Charge for the year (Note 9) FAZIHE A EZ9) 125
At 31 December 2011 N—E——F+—-_H=+—H 1,308
Carrying amount: AREE
At 31 December 2011 NW_E——F+-_A=+—H 2,223
At 31 December 2010 RZE—FF+_HA=1—H 2,348
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREETTT
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—HEmE 2,223 2,348
Portion classified as current assets DEEAREEE Y (125) (125)
Portion classified as non-current assets DREIERBEEZEBD 2,098 2,223

The above medium-term land use rights are located in the

PRC.
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19. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 19. HEIRE
The Group and the Company
TEERAEQT
2011 2010
=F——F =7
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
At 1 January n—HA—H 28,959 26,399
Additions R 33,964 3,009
Transfer to property, plant and equipment B ZE% « BE R iEE
(Note 17) (Kiat17) (30,193) (342)
Disposals HeE (18) (107)
At 31 December R+-—A=+—8 32,712 28,959
20. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 20. AMBATMKRE
The Company
¥ /N
2011 2010
—B——5F —E-EF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETTT
Unlisted investment, at cost JEETIRE @ IRANE 25,500 10,500
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEB B A B 508 24,660 9,990
EMEERREECEEROARAR 85
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20. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2011

were as follows:—

Name of companies

AR

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong
Pharmacy Trading Company
Limited

HE B REELLHE
BREFAR

Jilin Province Medicinal Plants
Trading Company Limited

EMER T ERAEDLE
BRAF]

HEMERERMESRAT

Country of incorporation
and operation and

legal entity status
ML R

RENEARR
EEBRM

The PRC,
limited liability company

FE - AREEARF]
The PRC,
limited liability company

FE - BREEAT

The PRC,

20.

R EATNRE (F)
K=Z——F+=A=+—0  HWEAH
HEMT -

Percentage of
ordinary shares

limited liability company

R - BREIAT

The amounts due to subsidiaries classified as current
liabilities in the Company’s balance sheet are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

On 19 October 2010, the Group disposed its wholly
owned subsidiary of Changlong Bio-Pharmacy (Hong Kong)
Company Limited, to Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang, an executive
director of the Group, at a consideration of HK$2. Details
of the disposal are set out in note 36.

On 22 December 2010, the Company established a
subsidiary, EME REFMESGRAF], in the PRC with
100% equity interest. On 14 January 2011, the Company
further injected capital of RMB 15,000,000 in S#& KfERE
MEBRAR.
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held directly  Principal activity
BEEEE
ZERH
Aok FEEK
100%  Trading of
biochemical
medicine
BEEH v &R
100%  Dormant
RS
100% Dormant
TES)

ENHEARFRFEAALARTEERARE
RZRBEE - HEER  2ERREX

B -

R-F-FTF+ATIA  AEEALER
EMB AR REECEE(FE)ARAR
TAREBERITERRELSLSLE - KER2
AT o HEFBNHTRE6RKE

RIE—FTF+-_A=-+=H  K27FRH
FERY —HNEAR  HTHERERM
EBERAR - RAREBZAAIR100%
BeA#EzE - M- TB——F—A+MWHE - &
AREEMNEREERHMEAERATIAA
R #15,000,0007TE A ©



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R R B

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

21.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
The Group and the Company

21.

BLEE
FEERADT

Purchased

Purchased in-process

know-how research and

and development

prescription assets Total
BARMR CSRETH
) MEEE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARETT AR®ETT
Cost: A
At 1 January 2010 RZE—FTF—H—H 60,885 11,100 71,985
Additions 18R - - -
At 31 December 2010 RZZE—ZF+=A
and 31 December 2011 —t+—HARZT—F
+=ZA=+—AH 60,885 11,100 71,985
Accumulated amortisation and R RBEEE :
impairment loss:
At 1 January 2010 RZE—ZEF—H—H 38,635 - 38,635
Amortisation charge (Note 9) ﬁ&fﬁiﬁ(ﬁﬁﬂ?) 7,255 - 7,255
Impairment charge (Note 9) B H (47:79) 1,960 - 1,960
At 31 December 2010 RZZE—ZTF+=H
=+—H 47,850 - 47,850
Amortisation charge (Note 9) s (B 5t9) 3,961 - 3,961
Impairment charge (Note 9) BB H (47579) 860 600 1,460
At 31 December 2011 RZE—F+=A
=+—H 52,671 600 53,271
Carrying amount: BRMEIME :
At 31 December 2071 RZE—F+=H
=+—H 8,214 10,500 18,714
At 31 December 2010 RZZ—TF+_H
=+—H 13,035 11,100 24,135
Purchased know-how and prescription were acquired B A\ BT R B2 05 R BB L 5B = 5 & Ve B

through research and development cooperation with
independent third parties and were all acquired in cash.

RAZBREEA
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21.

22.

88

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

The Group and the Company (continued)

During the year, the Directors reviewed the carrying
amount of the purchased know-how and prescription
based on the future economic benefits generated from
these assets. An impairment loss of RMB1,460,000 was
recognised for the current year (2010: RMB1,960,000).

Purchased in-process research and development
assets represent costs incurred by third parties for the
development of new products, including cost of clinical
experiments and tests conducted. Due to the inherent
uncertainties associated with these purchased in-process
research and development projects, the associated
expenditure incurred is particularly at risk of impairment if
the successful eventual commercialisation of the projects
becomes doubtful. The Directors have reviewed the
carrying amount of these purchased in-process research
and development assets and consider that there are no
indications of impairment as at 31 December 2011 and
2010.

DEPOSIT FOR ACQUISITION OF LAND USE
RIGHTS

In the year 2008, the Company entered into a land
purchase agreement with an independent third party
to purchase a parcel of land which is situated at the
Economic Development Zone in Huinan, Jilin Province,
the PRC, at a consideration of RMB11,372,000. During
the year ended 31 December 2008, the Company paid a
deposit of RMB10,000,000 to the third party. The balance
is expected to be settled upon the completion of the
registration process to transfer the title of the land to
the Company. The Directors have reviewed the carrying
amount of the deposit and consider that these is no
indication of impairment as at 31 December 2011 and
2010.

As disclosed in Note 35 to the financial statements, the
above unpaid balance is included as a capital commitment
of the Group and the Company.
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22,

mEEEE)

AEBRAAT(E)

FN - EERBEREEERREEZ LR
PR TS P AT R B2 H 2 BREME &
FEBRZFBEEERARM,460,000
T(ZE—FF : AR¥1,960,0007T) °

ERETHINEEERE = ARETED
EECER  BEZETZER NI
AN - MR BBEIEETTHRIEEE 2K
ETEEREE - MEEE SRR EL
R EENBHBRALEGFERER
% BEEC RN OEETPIHBEEEZR
HE UYRER-_ZT—FR_T—ZTF
+ZA=+— R EEARETE -

Wi L fE RS

RZTTENF  ARFE—FZBIE=F
RIS bR - B E MNP B E NG E
MEEEREZ R REABARE
11,372,000 - HE_-_ZTZEN\F+_-A
=+—HLFE  AREEfiRe ARE
10,000,000 C P& B E =7 - HepkIE
TERR ST AR BB T T AR 2 5
fERELN - EFECEMIRSERE -
VWRABNR_E——FRZTE—FTF+=A
=t+—HBIERETE -

WNEF RS ERZR AT SEI5IMEE - LA B AR REE
BAREB KNG 2 ERELE -
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23. INVENTORIES 23. ®E
The Group and the Company
AEERAKDTE
2011 2010
—E——F —E—FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETFT
Raw materials A 7,312 8,208
Work in progress bkl 23,165 13,638
Finished goods SURK 5,790 10,770
36,267 32,516
Less: Provision for obsolete and B BERBETERE
slow-moving inventories (5,980) (9,213)
30,287 23,303
During the year, provision on obsolete and slow-moving FA - BENAR2897,0007T 2 BEE
inventories amounted to RMB2,897,000 was made (2010: REBEGFERBE(ZZ—ZF : AR
RMB2,864,000). 2,864,0007T) °
During the year, certain obsolete and slow-moving FR - BENAR2745000TEE K
inventories amounted to RMB2,745,000 were written off TEIHITEMEE(ZE—TF  |) -
(2010: Nil).
During the year, certain obsolete and slow-moving FA - 21EH AKRK6,130,0007TH BEE
inventories amounted to RMB6,130,000, which the KRBT EMER AR FEEELBE
provision were already made in prior years, were written (ZE—FTF ) -
off (2010: Nil).

24. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 24. A#tHENKEE

The Group and the Company

AEBRAQT
2011 2010
—E——5 —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARET T

Unlisted financial instruments, at cost Ik FHEIE TR » REAE

At 1 January R—A—H 2,000 -
Additions Fig 70,000 20,000
Settlements k= (52,000) (18,000)
At 31 December HR+=—B=+—H 20,000 2,000

EHEMBRRECRREOBRAT g9
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24. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 24. Tm##HEBMBEE(E)
(continued)
The above unlisted financial instruments represent LM EmMBTEEAEEMMREDY
the Group's subscriptions of 400 contracts with 40017 & £ A R ¥20,000,000 7T £ 5 7% £
RMB20,000,000 in total redeemable structured deposits MEENGEFRTREHEABLREE
linked to highly liquid assets such as bonds and deposits. BEREL « ERHREARZINBRRER
It is measured at cost less impairment at the end of the KA E  ARAEERAFEGBTHEE
reporting period because the range of reasonable fair RE WESFRABEAFEDEERT
value estimates is so significant that the directors are 2 FRFLTHBITENRFEMET
of the opinion that the fair value cannot be measured BB TR IR T 5E38()
reliably. Details of fair value estimation of unlisted financial
instruments during the year are set out in Note 38(f) to the
financial statements.
The directors consider that there were no impairment EERBE RZZE—ERZZT—ZF
provisions on available-for-sale financial assets and the TZA=+—H  JHEEVBEETE
carrying values approximate the fair values as at 31 BUERHE BIRMESRE A FERE -
December 2011 and 2010.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date RREBE - IEENSEAEERRAIE
is the carrying value of the unlisted financial instruments. MBI AMNRRE -
25. TRADE RECEIVABLES 25. EWESERX
The Group The Company
AEE NN
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E2——F —TTF —B——F —TFTF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRE ARBTT ARETRT ARETT
Trade receivables EWE IR 111,444 101,507 131,865 113,198
Less: Provision for impairment  J& : B EE (10,352) (10,184) (7,690) (7,239)
Trade receivables — net EUE SR
—F58 101,092 91,323 124,175 105,959
(i) The Group's policy is to allow an average credit (i) AEBBKERGETESEP YA
period of 180 days to its trade customers. 180H ZEEH -
90 Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 25. FEBWREZERMR(E)

(ii) The movements in the provision for impairment (ii) FARKRERENER (BER
for doubtful debts during the year, including both NSRBI T
specific and collective loss components, are as
follows:

The Group The Company

AEE NN
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E2——F —TTF —B——F —TIFTF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®Tr ARETT AR%®TR ARETT
At 1 January mw—HA—H 10,184 13,717 7,239 11,736
Additional provision NN BEE (F17E9)

(Note 9) 168 2,721 451 1,757
Written off isE - (6,254) - (6,254)
At 31 December W+—-_A=+—H 10,352 10,184 7,690 7,239
Provision for doubtful debts had been made for RRBBESEE B 2 A5 A
the estimated irrecoverable amounts arising from WEISEEEL - EFC2ERTH
the sale of goods. The provision was determined RISERETBRARESSE -
by the directors with reference to past default
experience.

(iii) The ageing analysis of trade receivables, based on (iii) BEEZE B RINBRERE ZERX
the invoice date and net of provision for impairment RERE - EYE SRR D
of trade receivables, is as follows: W

The Group The Company

AEE NN

2011 2010 2011 2010
—E2——F —_T-TF —B——F —TIFTF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT AR%®TR ARETT
Current BIER 20,763 31,717 18,851 33,771
31-90 days 31-90H 27,511 18,871 30,455 22,680
91-180 days 91-180H 28,400 13,751 36,046 19,431
More than 180 days HBi#E180H 24,418 26,984 38,823 30,077

101,092 91,323 124,175 105,959
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25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 25. FEWREZERMR(E)
(ivy  The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are (iv)  WEERIEEEIERERNRERE
neither individually nor collectively considered to be SRR -
impaired is as follows:
The Group The Company
AEE KATH
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E2——F —_T-TF —B——F —TFTF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRE ARBTT AR¥ETRT ARETT
Neither past due nor I e B SORU(E
impaired 76,674 64,339 85,352 75,881
Less than 1 month 20 B DA — 1 A
past due 5,390 5,736 14,502 11,333
1to 3 months pastdue  BHI—Z==1{#A 6,602 7,025 8,601 6,722
Over 3 months past due i HAEE @ =& A 5,843 6,218 7,950 6,213
94,509 83318 116,405 100,149

92

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired relate to a wide range of customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not
impaired relate to a number of independent
customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment is necessary in
respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

(v) Included in trade receivables of the Company
was a balance of RMB38,553,000 (2010:
RMB25,939,000) due from a subsidiary as at 31
December 2011.

(vi) The Directors consider the carrying amount of

trade receivables approximates their fair value.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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(v)

(vi)

B kR (B A R 5 B B
REWEBOPRACEZEFA

BB EBENENE BRRES
FBURFEH ZEEPHAS
BHEERBERI - RBEBEL
% BERERR  RESESRBARM
B RAREEERYEERE
B BESDREET2E8RE -
7RSS [ 3 BA 5% S AE RS B AR

o
[sTulig

RAREWE ZEFABER_-E
——F+-_A=+—HEKHBEA
A2 #E#R AR 38,553,000 (=
T—FF : AREE25,939,0007T) °

EERR - FREZERFZEREE
EE N FERE
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26.

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 26.
PREPAYMENTS

HttEWRE ~ fT & REN R

The Group The Company
TEH AN
2011 2010 2011 2010
=B——F _T-TF ZB——F _ZT-ILTF
RMB’000 RMB’'000  RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARBTT AR¥TR ARETT

Deposits and prepayments, net 514 N BEIE

it 8,082 9,102 8,082 9,102
Advances to staff, net M8 T#GK - JFEE 7,462 3,285 7,462 3,285
Other receivables, net E bR -

R 5,526 2,257 5,526 2,257

Bills receivables R E R 32,626 11,774 30,923 11,362

53,696 26,418 51,993 26,006
Less: non-current other B IERENE A
receivables, deposits and Uezkig ~ 5T
prepayments & RIERR

18 (2,100) (5,100) (2,100) (5,100)

51,596 21,318 49,893 20,906

During the year, provision for impairment on deposits and
prepayments amounted to RMB1,067,000 was made
(2010: Nil).

TR HITERBARIELARE
1,067,000 T 2 BERE(ZZE—ZF :

&) -

BRI (RO AR
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26. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 26. HtEWHE T2 RANSNKE

PREPAYMENTS (continued) (#&)

At 31 December 2011 and 2010, certain of the Group's RZE——FR_E-ZFF+_A=+—
and the Company's advances to staff and other B AEBERARRME TEMNHE TR
receivables were determined to be impaired. The impaired ENEMEWRIEBRETADRE < %%
receivables related to staff and debtors that were in BRI E R B IE AR BURE S 8
financial difficulties and management assessed that only THERANER  EEEFHRABOE
a portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered. WIETE AR AT ULl o E B SR ER VL A
Consequently, the following provisions for doubtful debts TR -

have been made.

The Group and The Group and the
the Company Company
Advanced to staff Other receivables
AEBRAEQT AEBRAQT
MET K HAth R FRIE
2011 2010 2011 2010

—$——% -T-T5 -8 —F -T-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFE ARETL ARBFE ARETT

Gross amounts ek 13,249 8,179 7,246 3,108
Less: Provision for impairment  J& : JR{E R (5,787) (4,894) (1,720) (851)
Net amounts FEE 7,462 3,285 5,526 2,257
The Group and the Company do not hold any collateral REERARQ GBI S A7 E (2
over the above balances. The movement in the provisions I o FAME TR R EMERFKIE
for impairment of advances to staff and other receivables RERENEZE(BIEREREEEIRE
during the year, including both specific and collective loss ST

components, is as follows:

The Group and the Company

REEMBEARQT
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

At 1 January n—A—H 5,745 2,756
Additional provision (Note 9) N (H/5#9) 1,762 3,009
Written off bk - (20)
At 31 December Rt+ZA=+—H 7,507 5,745

94 Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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27. LOANS RECEIVABLES 27.
The Group and the Company

EWRER
AEERAERDT
The Group and the Company
FEERAQT
2011 2010
—E——fF —T-TfF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T ARETIT

Loans receivables due within 1 year R—FEREE 2 BRE R 34,950 15,150
Interest receivable FEUF 2 1,291 643
Less: Provision for impairment R BE R (2,550) -
Loans receivables due R—FEREEZ

within 1 year — net FEE R - 558 33,691 15,793

(i) Loans of aggregate sum of RMB10,000,000 (2010:
RMB10,000,000) due from an independent third
party is unsecured, bears interest of 10% per annum
(2010: 10% per annum) and, following its renewal,
shall be repaid within the next twelve months.

(ii) Loans of aggregate sum of RMB10,150,000 (2010:
RMB5,150,000) due from an independent third party
is unsecured, bears interest of 10% per annum
(2010: 10%) and, following its renewal, shall be
repaid within the next twelve months.

(iii) Loans of aggregate sum of RMB4,800,000
(2010: Nil) due from an independent third party is
unsecured, bears interest of 10% per annum (2010:
Nil) and, following its renewal, shall be repaid within
the next twelve months.

(iv) Loans of aggregate sum of RMB10,000,000
(2010: Nil) due from an independent third party is
unsecured, interest free (2010: Nil) and, following
its renewal, shall be repaid within the next twelve
months.

(i) BUBLE=FTNEREEAR
#10,000,0007L (ZZE—ZFF : A
R %10,000,0007T) BEEA - 1%
FREI0EFB(ZE—ZF : F
FIZ10E) RBEBBERAR+ =
EAREE -

(ii) BUBLIE=FNEREEAR
#10,150,0007C(ZF—ZF : A
R¥5,150,00070) AEIEKIF - 12F
FMEI0EFTBE(ZZE—FF 10F)
MERBEENRRR+ZEARE

(iii) ERBUE=ZTHEREREAR
#4,800,0007T( — & —Z4F : )
BEER  REFEI10ETE(Z
T-ZF  B)REBBEAREKRK
T-EAREE -

(iv) BB E=ZFNERETBAR
#10,000,0007T f_@—ﬁi )
BEER - 28 (Z2—TF : #)
RESHBARNRKR T Z@EANE
2 o

iMﬁ?ﬁﬁE“Eikﬁ%ﬂiﬁﬁﬁE’/}E 95
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27. LOANS RECEIVABLES (continued) 27. FEREXR(E)
The Group and the Company (continued) AEBRAAT(HE)
(v) The ageing analysis of loan receivables that are (v) WA Rk R R ERER N E
neither individually or collectively considered to be SR DTN
impaired is as follows:
The Group and the Company
TEBRAQT
2011 2010
—E2——F —ET-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT
Neither past due nor impaired I fE s BRSO (B 26,624 15,793
Less than 1 year past due BER DR —F = -
26,624 15,793
(vii  The movements in the specific provision for (vi) FAREREREREHENEESNM
impairment for doubtful debts during the year are as ™~
follows:
The Group and the Company
TEERAQT
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREEFTT
At 1 January n—H—H - -
Provision for impairment (Note 9) BAERHE (H7529) 2,550 -
At 31 December BNt+-—A=+—H 2,550 -
(vii  The Directors consider the carrying amount of loans (vi) EEBRE G BUERZE@EHRHE

96

receivables approximates their fair value.
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28.

29.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances comprise cash held by the
Group and the Company and short-term bank deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less. The
directors consider the carrying amount of these assets
approximates their fair value.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s and the Company’s
cash and bank balances denominated in RMB amounted
to RMB70,059,000 and RMB56,500,000 respectively
(2010: RMB97,559,000 and RMB92,472,000 respectively).
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies
through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

TRADE PAYABLES

The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the
invoice date, is as follows:

28.

29.

RERREEEY

Re RBTABEEFEBRAD RS
Re REFMA A= EARUT 2 2R
T3 - BERA - WEAEZREER
HAPEEE -

RZE—F+ZA=+—H &EH
RARBIAAREGFEZR S RIBTEH
#5 Bll A A R % 70,059,000 T 1 A R
56,500,000t (=T —Z4F : H3lA A
R 97,559,000 7T 1 A &R # 92,472,000
L) e ARBTREHREBAREME
SR - ARIBPBEARREZINEBTERE - &
[EEIERHEEERTE  AEBEEER
R TINE K 2 RITHE AR S8
BEMER -

FEAY B 2 BRX
AT RERER B HNEMNE ZRFNE
BT -

The Group and the Company

TEBRAQT
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREEFTT
Current BNER 3,595 2,031
31-90 days 31-90H 1,112 723
Over 90 days HBiE90H 4,202 4,125
8,909 6,879
The average credit period from the Group's and the REBEBRANGBBSHEREAZFHEER
Company's trade creditors is 90 to 180 days. A90H 21808 -
Trade payables principally comprise amounts outstanding ENEZERETEREREREEEST -
for trade purchases. The directors consider the carrying EERARNESERFZEHERAEAF

amount of trade payables approximates their fair value.

[EREE=R

%M‘é?ﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬂ:ﬁ%g

—=

BERATA 97

S —— R



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R R B

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UANRBETR)
30. BANK BORROWINGS 30. SRITEE
The Group and the Company
TEERAQT
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T ARBEFTT
Short-term bank borrowings, unsecured 4G HASRITIEE - MK 1,000 -

31.

98

Short-term bank borrowings of RMB1,000,000 as at 31
December 2011 will be due for maturity on 30 September
2012, and bears an interest rate of 7.22% annually. The
borrowing is denominated in RMB. The fair value of short-
term borrowing equal their carrying amount, as the impact
of discounting is not significant.

LOANS FROM GOVERNMENT AUTHORITY

Loans were obtained from Huinan County Finance Bureau
for the purpose of research and development activities of
the Company. The loans are unsecured and bear interest
at one year term saving interest rate promulgated by The
People's Bank of China plus 0.3% per annum. The loans
are repayable by instalments until July 2022 as follows:

31.

N-ZE——F+_-_A=+—H B4
TE AR % 1,000,0007T © 2IEIBE A=
T-—FNA=Z+H FERFERE7.22
B o FIEFAARB BERN - ARLE
VHETK  RHEFRNAFEEALRR
EMER °

BFHEER

IR B R E N EREARR RS
A  ZEERAEERR  ZPBEAR
RITHEME —FHEEZEFENOIEME
FIEEE - ZFERERTIAARE
ZZF AR EER ¢

The Group and the Company

TEBRAQT
2011 2010
—E——fF = —FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETFT
Within one year —FR 651 636
After one year but within two years R—FEERMFAN 636 636
After two years but within five years PREREBERFER 1,906 1,906
After five years RAFE 2,877 3,512
6,070 6,690
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32. DEFERRED TAXATION 32. EEBIE
The movements during the year in the deferred tax FRRELEREGBEOESOT

liabilities are as follows:

The Group and the Company

AEBRAAT
2011 2010
g% _—zT-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETIT

At 1 January n—A—H 956 1,499
Credited to profit or loss (Note 10(a)) MBS AR (HiE10) (472) (543)
At 31 December Nt+—_A=+—H 484 956
The deferred tax liabilities recognised at the balance sheet REEEMRZIELETH AR EERA R
date represented deferred tax arising from accelerated TEHRE ZIRERIE
depreciation allowances.
33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. EBX
2011 2010
—E——F —ZT-TF
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
R 28 ] PhE G
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AREFT
Domestic shares of RMBO0.10 each  GRREEARE
010t E R 387,750,000 38,775 387,750,000 38,775
H shares of RMB0.10 each FREEARE
0.107CHIHA% 172,500,000 17,250 172,500,000 17,250
560,250,000 56,025 560,250,000 56,025

EHEMBRRELCRREOBRAT Qg
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34. RESERVES 34. f#fE
The Group AEE
Exchange Reserve ELRE
The Group's exchange reserve comprises all foreign REEE H HEREINE R 2 g HmE
exchange differences arising from the translation of the HMESELEZFTBINEERE - ZFEBER
financial statements of foreign operations. The reserve B2 8 2 AR B ST BURRIE -

is dealt with in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy set out in Note 2(r).

The Company ¥/
Statutory
Share surplus Retained
premium reserve profits Total
SETE
BRADEE BirfRE  REER st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT AR%®TR AR%®TR AR®TR
(Note a) (Note b)
(Kiita) (H17tb)

At 1 January 2010 RIE—FF
—H—H 51,098 30,365 131,972 213,435
Profit for the year INEE - - 32,882 32,882
Appropriation to statutory BREEE
surplus reserve BERFEE - 2,877 (2,877) -
At 31 December 2010 R-ZE—ZF
+=—A=+—H 51,098 33,242 161,977 246,317
Profit for the year RELZ @A - - 50,729 50,729
Appropriation to statutory B EELE
surplus reserve B - - - -
At 31 December 2011 RZE—F
+=—B=+—H 51,098 33,242 212,706 297,046

'I OO Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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34.

35.

RESERVES (continued)
The Company (continued)

(a)

(b)

Share premium

The Company’s share premium account represents
the premium arising from shares issued at a price
in excess of their par value per share.

Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC
and the Company's articles of association, the
Company and its PRC subsidiaries shall appropriate
10 percent of their annual statutory net profit (after
offsetting any prior years’ losses) to the statutory
surplus reserve account. When the balance of
such reserve reaches 50 percent of these entities’
share capital, any further appropriation is optional.
The statutory surplus reserve can be utilised to
offset prior years' losses or to issue bonus shares.
However, such statutory surplus reserve must be
maintained at a minimum of 25 percent of share
capital after such issuance.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At the balance sheet date, the Group and the Company
had capital commitments contracted for but not provided
for as follows:—

34. @#E(E)
AT ()
(a) BRBEE
ADFRG R E R AR BEREE
ZEREITZIRDEE Y HE -

(b) CEERRREE
REPEARDERARRRAE
T ARE R E A B LR
EFEEMERR  ABH10%
RMEREEANEEERBFHEP
A - BEZBRFEENEREZTA
AR 2 50% - ALNTE Al BTE
BREDE SRR EERH
AR RERmEFE R AR
TTHLRR « 1 > ALRBEITIROETER
BRHBRR DRI AH25%

35. EXEE
REHEB - AEBRARTETAERIE
BENEREENT - —

The Group and the Company

AEBRAAT
2011 2010
—g—-& —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETTT

Acquisition of intangible assets WEE & 2,940 2,940
Acquisition of construction in progress BALETLRR 2,270 -

Acquisition of property, BAME
plant and equipment B K a5t 57 1,055
Acquisition of land use rights (Note 22) Wi + (s e (a2 22) 1,372 1,372
Additional capital contribution of subsidiary 1ZHIE A 7l 2 =& R - 15,000
6,639 20,367
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. BAEAELRS
Related party transactions concerned with numbers FABEEFEEREKRBE 2 BEEBEAT
of key management during the year comprised only RHEBRANTEELNME - HBie
remuneration paid to the Executive Directors, and is set BRI RERMFE14 0
out in Note 14 to the financial statements.
During the year ended 2010, the Group has disposed HE_T-TFFE  AEEDLERE
of its entired interest in Changlong Bio-Pharmacy (Hong 2 REEEE(HE)BRA AN IR
Kong) Company Limited, to Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang, an HTREENTESFRERTE  RER
executive director of the Group, at a consideration of 28T ERBER ST - AEBERELEW
HK$2, and the Group recorded a gain on disposal of JB A A 8RS W A R%213,0007T © 5T
subsidiary of RMB213,000 in this transaction. Subsequent MR S%  REEELBEEEB)ERAA
to completion, Changlong Bio-Pharmacy (Hong Kong) BHRREXCEEEERESR -
Company Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr.
Zhang Xiao Guang.
Disposal of a subsidiary HERBEATR
Net liabilities of Changlong Bio-Pharmacy (Hong Kong) RIEEBR - REA(CEZE(EB)ERA
Company Limited at the date of disposal were as follows: RIMBEFEAT :
2010
—ETFF
RMB'000
ARETFT
Other receivables HAb e RIE 10
Cash and cash equivalents HeMReFEY 36
Exchange reserve FE 5 i (259)
(213)
Gain on disposal of subsidiary HEMB AT 213
Total consideration BRE -
Satisfied by: SR
Cash b -
Net cash outflow arising on disposal of subsidiary HEW B A RIRIE R F58
Cash consideration ReRE -
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of EHEMNRE MRS EEY (36)
(36)
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37.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure
and shareholder returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
judgements to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its
capital structure using a gearing ratio, which is total debts
divided by adjusted capital. Total debts represent total
borrowings. Adjusted capital includes all components of
shareholders’ equity less unrealized reserves.

In order to maintain or adjust the gearing ratio, the Group
may issue new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise
new debt financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

The gearing ratio at 31 December 2011 and 2010 was 2.1%
and 2.3% respectively, calculated as follows:

37.

EXmmER

ErEE

AEEEREAZ TERBRREAEE
A FHEAS L BB NI i B B R K F AR
HEZERIREEBAREFEERA
HBE @ MBAIRCRAIEDR -

A R R R A AR R AR
B - LMET BB S Ok TR R
BB AR R TR 0 7 AR BAR R0 T H4R
BB AL AR RREESE
% - IR R S B L AR
4B o

AEZEZENED  AEBLRGBELEIERE
PEH BRGNS o B - BIETS R AL

Eﬂ¥§$ 1 fxi@gﬁ?afﬁgi@gﬁ ° Z«(Eﬂ%
BARBIEFE R RS B WK R
1# o

REFSABREEAGBLER - REEARE
BITHR - MBRCRBEEAR - (EHHOE
BRAILEEEARDAE -

RN_E——FE R _T—TF+_A=+—
ACEEAELEDRA2.1%%2.3% ¢
FTET

2011 2010
—E——F ZE-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREEFTT

Total debts BE4a5E
— Bank borrowings —iRTEE 1,000 -
— Loans from government authority —BUNH#EAS 6,070 6,690
7,070 6,690
Shareholders’ equity fR A= 342,507 291,614
Gearing ratio BEAMGBIX 2.1% 2.3%
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38.

104

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk management

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks, including credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk,
currency risk, price risk and fair values risk. The Group
does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments
either for hedging or for trading purposes. These risks are
managed by the Group’s financial management policies
and practices as described below to minimise potential
effects on the Group's financial performance.

(a)

(b)

Credit risk

The Group’s principal financial assets are cash
and bank balances, trade and other receivables
and loans receivables. The Group’s credit risk is
primarily attributable to its trade, other and loans
receivables. The Group allows an average credit
period of 180 days to its trade customers. The
amounts presented in the balance sheets are net
of allowance for doubtful receivables. An allowance
for impairment is made where there is an identified
loss event which, based on previous experience, is
evidence of a reduction in the recoverability of the
cash flows.

The Group does not have any significant credit
risk exposure to any single trade counterparty
or any Group of trade counterparties having
similar characteristics. It has policies in place to
ensure that sales are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history.

The carrying amount of the trade and other
receivables, loans receivables and cash and bank
balances included in the consolidated balance
sheet represents the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to the Group's financial
assets.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management,
including the short term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to approval
by the Company's board of directors when the
borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of
authority. The Group's policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
Annual Report 2011

38.

B mBREE

B b B

AEENTHELRZELBYBER -
BREEERR  RBHERR - FXE
%~ BRI - BREREATFERR
AEBYEFERBITITESR T AFY
HRBEERG - MTXATE - ZERRH
FEBNPBERBBRREHRIVAER -
NEERESAEEMBRANEEY

1
=

(a)

(b)

FEmE
REEZ T BMBEERRS RIR
TTHREERA R BIE B 0RK - HibfE
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38

(continued)

Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table details the remaining
contractual maturities at the balance sheet date
of the Group's financial liabilities, which are based
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual
rates, or if floating, based on rates current at the

B EREE(E)
s EE (F)

(b)

REELmEE (&)

TREIAKEMBREREHR
MR T AR BERFE - TORIER]
MATRRERE(BEREAL
M RNAFENE - AIERE
FEAMMEAEOFE)ARAE
B R ARR A REAN R &RTF B H

balance sheet date) and the earliest date the Group FTE -
and the Company can be required to pay.
The Group EE
Total More than More than
contractual Within Tyearbut  2yearsbut
Carrying  undiscounted 1year or less than less than More than
amount cashflow  ondemand 2 years 5 years 5 years
TRRITR R —E4Z WERZ
FEE  ReReE BEX AER BER 1%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARMTn  ARMTr  ARETR  AR¥TR  ARETx
2011 Z2--F
Trade payables ERESER 8909 8909 8909 - - -
Other payables EtfErE 72,484 72,484 72,484 - - -
Income tax payable TSR 12,097 12,097 12,097 - - -
Other tax payables EfbEMHE 13,941 13,941 13,941 - - -
Dividend payable EfiRE 325 325 325 - - -
Bank borrowings H/TlE 1,000 1072 1072 - - -
Loans from government authority  BFEEES 6,070 7,240 873 834 2,362 317
114,826 116,068 109,701 843 2,362 3m
Total More than More than
contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
Canrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than More than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years byears b years
STHRFR —ERE —FRE MERE
BEE  BensR BEX FER HER bk
RIMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RIMB'000
ARBIT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR AREfR
2010 E-3%
Trade payables ERESER 6879 6879 6879 - - -
Other payables HAbEFE 64,123 64,123 64,123 - - -
Income tax payable ERAEH 914 914 914 - - -
Qther tax payables HibERHE 8,166 8,166 8,166 - - -
Dividend payable ERRE 330 330 330 - - -
Loans from government authority - B EEER 6,690 8,104 880 857 2432 3,935
87102 83,516 81,292 857 2432 3,935
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38 BiXEMER(HE)
(continued)
Financial risk management (continued) M EREE (H)
(b)  Liquidity risk (continued) (b) FBEZERE)
The Company AL
Total More than More than
contractual Within Tyearbut 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted 1year or less than less than More than
amount cashflow  ondemand 2 years 5 years 5 years
HE Rt ok - MEHE
BEE  RER4E REX MER BER BEH
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AE¥TRL  ARMTR ARMTn  ARETR  ARETn  AR%Tn
201 —E--&
Trade payables ERESER 8909 8,909 8909 = = =
Other payables AtERZE 71,739 71,739 71,739 - - -
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEHER 7 ] 24,660 24,660 24,660 - - -
Income tax payable FERFER 12,097 12,097 12,097 - - -
Other tax payables EtbEATE 12783 12,783 12,783 - - =
Dividend payable EffRe 325 325 325 - - -
Bank borrowings RfEE 1,000 1072 1072 = = =
Loans from govemment authority - BT EEZ: 6,070 7,240 873 834 2,362 3
137,583 138,825 132,458 834 2,362 31
Total More than More than
contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than More than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years byears 5years
STORAR e —E§E MERE
SEE  Behes BEX MER RER Gil:2
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  AREFT  ARETR  ARETRT  ARETR ARER
210 Z8-%F
Trade payables ERESERN 6,879 6,879 6,879 - - -
Other payables EthfErE 63,721 63721 63721 - - -
Amounts due to subsidlaries ERHER MIE 9990 9,990 9,990 - - -
Income tax payable ERFTER 914 914 914 - - -
Other tax payables EfbEMHE 7467 7467 7487 - - -
Dividend payable Bk 330 330 330 -
Loans from government authority ~ R EEE % 6,690 8,104 880 857 2432 3,935
96,011 97425 90,201 857 2432 3,935
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38.

(continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily

MEEREE(K)
(c) F=REME
AEB TR ER T B R AR

MERBNEE - WFBFEIELD

from its borrowings from Huinan County Finance
Bureau. Borrowings at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group's
interest rate profile as monitored by management is

EBRSAEBEHR S RENER
B o SETE B EL IR H) AN AL [B F R AR
REHIET

set out below:

The Group and the Company

AEEREQT
2011 2010
S =T

Effective Effective

interest interest

rate rate

BERR= BFRA 2
%  RMB’'000 % RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT

Variable rate borrowings ZE2{E&
Loans from government BRI E X

authority 3.53% 6,070 3.66% 6,690

The interest rate and terms of repayment of
the Group’'s and the Company’s borrowings
are disclosed in Note 30 and 31 to the financial
statements.

At 31 December 2011, it was estimated that a
general increase or decrease of 100 basis points in
interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
would decrease or increase the Group's profit after
taxation and retained profits by RMB52,000 (2010:
RMB57,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the balance sheet date and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for
the borrowings in existence at that date. The
100 basis point increase or decrease represents
management’'s assessment of a reasonably
possible change in interest rates over the period
until the next annual balance sheet date.

REERAQBNEERERIER
BB R AR M E30 M3 1 HE 85 -

WZB——F+=A=+—8 &
REHMEHAE - (WEERE L
SRR 100EESS - (T B AR
SEB RN RRB R o
MARB2,000C(ZE—Z4F
AR#EB7,0007T)

R RRFEE R
HREREE - AR ARZKEMN
ERFRAREETE o CHETHR
100ERIAEREHRE T4

Rk E B IR RE T R A
R T o
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38.

108

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38 BEiREKREE(E)
(continued)
(d)  Currency risk (d) EB¥RR
The Group mainly operated in the PRC with most REEFENFELLER - KE
of the transactions settled in Renminbi and did not PRPGUAREER - BUBLEEIN
have significant exposure to risk resulting from MER P EMEENEARR
changes in foreign currency exchange rates.
(e)  Price risk (e) EEM
The Group is not exposed to any equity price risk & E B E A AR R E AR E e
or commodity price risk. REmEERRE
(f)  Fair value estimation () AFEMLE
The table below analyses financial instruments TRERBEESITIRAFEYE
carried at fair value, by valuation method. The EHIA - TRASHEWERLOT :
different levels have been defined as follows:
o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active . HREEXBEEERT
markets for identical assets or liabilities (level HHHRE(KRAE)(F
1). ) o
. Inputs other than quoted prices included . BT E1RFBESNRE
within level 1 that are observable for the N ZEEMBEMNATE
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as RMHMEE  TAREE
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from (BNl an(B 1R ) sk i (R
prices) (level 2). BEE)(F24) -
. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not . BENBELIFKEAH
based on observable market data (that is, R i5 EE A AR (B
unobservable inputs) (level 3). A BREIR) (B34R) °
The following table presents the Group's and the TREVWAEERAATRZE
Company's assets that are measured at fair value ——F+_A=t+—HBEAFE:
at 31 December 2011. EMEE o
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1ER 24 E3W st
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR%®TR AR%®TR AR®TR
Assets BE
Available-for-sale financial ~ AI L&
assets B EE - 20,000 20,000
Total assets EERE = 20,000 20,000

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38.
(continued)
(f) Fair value estimation (continued)

The following table presents the Group's and the

Company’s assets that are measured at fair value

B EREE(H)
(fl  AFEMEEER)

FREFIARMEARAR T~
TEH-A=T-ARATEIE

at 31 December 2010. WEE o
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ENFA FE21 FE3 “aEt
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT AREBTT ARETT
Assets BE
Available-for-sale financial At H €
assets B TS &= - - 2,000 2,000
Total assets EERE - - 2,000 2,000

The fair value of financial assets traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the
balance sheet date. A market is regarded as active
if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group,
pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those
prices represent actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm’s length basis.
The quoted market price used for financial assets
held by the group is the current bid price. These
financial assets are included in level 1.

The fair value of financial assets that are not traded
in an active market (for example, over-the-counter
derivatives) is determined by using valuation
technigues. These valuation techniques maximise
the use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required
to fair value an instrument are observable, the
financial assets is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based
on observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3.

HEREMSEENSRTANRF
EREEERNTISRETR - B
RIE T BN M E LB HFR S -
R &R FAAL - EER
BELEERIZES  MEZERE
RERRAF RS EEETHERA
BRTSRZSE - ZmiSHRRAE
B o ARERENUHEENTS
BESERETHRE - WEMEE
EBRESIR -

BREELEMSEEENEHMITA
(FIans5IMTE T B) B R FEFIA
EERMERE - SERTEENR
ABRmSEEIE) @BEMMK
BERMNSEM - FTE B
BTANAFEMFNABEEAS
ARFIEBSREE - AIZMBEET
ANE2 -

IN—IEsL S HE KA IERIEA
HRMISEE - AZeRIAYIA
B34 o
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38.

(continued)

(f) Fair value estimation (continued)

B EREE(H)
(fl  AFEMEEER)

Specific valuation techniques used to value

financial assets include:

Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for
similar instruments.

The fair value of interest rate swaps is
calculated as the present value of the
estimated future cash flows based on
observable yield curves.

The fair value of forward foreign exchange
contracts is determined using forward
exchange rates at the balance sheet date,
with the resulting value discounted back to
present value.

Other technigues, such as discounted cash
flow analysis, are used to determine fair

value for the remaining financial assets.

The following table presents the changes in level
3 financial assets for the year ended 31 December

2011 and 2010.

FLAREM & E R R E (R E R
B

. FIEE T A5 MER
RBEHE -

o AEEHNATEEET
CENEE S
RABSRBAOBEHH -

. EHINEA R A FERN
REERBXRAMNEDR
[ERETE - MATSEET
HERIE -

. HAsd - plmirER e
MEDN - BIAEE R
MIEEENNFE -

TREIREBEEZZ—FR=F
—ZFE+-A=+—HILFEFE3
MEYTEEENEE) -

2011 2010
—E——F ZE—TF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
Unlisted structured deposits EETEBER AREFT AREEFTT
Opening balance FUEERR 2,000 -
Additions i 70,000 20,000
Settlements HE (52,220) (18,039)
Gains recognised in profit or loss RIBE R A M S 220 39
Closing balance FREH 20,000 2,000
Total gains or losses for the year FARUMEE S
including in profit or loss for R AEEE -
assets held at the end of the FFAIREHREBER
reporting period BEMELR 220 39

'I 'I O Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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39. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 39. HiKEERMKEERERNES

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY M E
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets and AEER T —FR-_ZT—TF+=A
financial liabilities as recognised at 31 December 2011 and =+ —AERNVBEERVEEED
2010 may be categorised as follows: IREE IR T XA T LA 48 -
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETTT

Financial assets BREE
Available-for-sale financial assets A ER R EE 20,000 2,000
Loans and receivables (including cash BNl ks
and bank balances) (BIEBR & RIRTTEH) 258,538 231,093
Financial liabilities g 3N
Financial liabilities measured at 0 3=A=Vk]
amortised cost R SERR AR IE 114,826 87,102

40. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 40. FHIHHR

STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised BEEGR T = A+t BEHIMN
for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2012. BT LS BHmE



Five Year Financial Summary

HFMBRE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARREZET)

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
published audited financial statements is set out below.

AEEHFEETREECMBERR BERE
MRFE2EE  EELBEREHIINWT °

Operating Results REEE

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=+-HLHFE

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
ZE2——f -5 —ZTHNF —TT)\F —TTLF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR®ETT AREBTT ARETT ARETR
Turnover ey 274,294 200,630 152,766 127,124 97,284
Cost of sales SHERAR (44,207) (42,658) (39,352) (38,819) (29,658)
Gross profit EF 230,087 157,972 113,414 88,305 67,626
Other income and net gains HAUWA KMz
or losses b 6,171 6,101 7,059 428 2,258
Distribution and selling costs DR HERST (148,464) (94,306) (77,684) (47,711) (38,426)
Administrative expenses TR (25,937) (26,307) (20,518) (15,524) (11,922)
Profit from operations dapiayil 61,857 43,460 22,271 25,498 19,536
Finance costs AR (253) (178) (273) (248) (107)
Profit before income tax FRATE A 61,604 43,282 21,998 25,250 19,429
Income tax (expensel/credit FrsHi(BY),/H% (10,711) (7,391) 78 (10,261) (7,051)
Profit for the year attributable to AR FNIES A
owners of the Company FEIEEF 50,893 35,891 22,076 14,989 12,378
Assets and Liabilities EEREE
As at 31 December
W+=A=1+—-H
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
2§ —T-TF ZZTTNF —TT)\F —TTLF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®ETT AR%®TT ARBTT ARETT ARETR
Bearer biological assets PR EMEE 2,615 2,504 2,169 1,390 1,175
Property, plant and equipment M - RE RERE 82,728 55,330 60,554 59,922 46,777
Prepared lease payments B TS 2,098 2,223 2,348 2,496 4,285
Construction in progress ERIR 32,712 28,959 26,399 14,830 7,880
Intangible assets B AE 18,714 24,135 33,350 40,829 27,128
Deposit for acquisition of S + i AR S
land use rights 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 -
Non-current other receivables, IERENE (bR FIA -
deposits and prepayments T LIENTIR 2,100 5,100 - - -
Current assets MENEE 306,850 251,421 200,973 188,578 181,387
Current liabilities mERE (109,407) (81,048) (71,322) (72,659) (41,382)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (5,903) (7,010) (8,489) (11,521) (8,371)
Net assets EESFE 342,507 291,614 255,982 233,865 218,879
Share capital g 56,025 56,025 56,025 56,025 56,025
Reserves {18 286,482 235,589 199,957 177,840 162,854
Total equity B 342,507 291,614 255,982 233,865 218,879
'I 'I 2 Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

BRERBFAEES

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the annual general meeting of
Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
(“the Company”) for the year ended 31 December 2011 (the
“"AGM") will be held at 31 Beishan Street, Chaoyang Town,
Huinan County, Tonghua, Jilin Province, the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") on Thursday, 28 June 2012 at 10:00 a.m. for
the following purposes:

As ordinary resolution:

1. to receive and consider the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and the reports of the
Directors of the Company and the independent auditor’s
report of the Company for the year ended 31 December,

2011;

2. to consider and approve the report of the Supervisory
Committee of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2011;

3. to consider the reappointment of Reanda Lau & Au Yeung

(HK) CPA Limited as auditors of the Company for the year
ending 31 December 2012 and authorize the Directors to
fix their remuneration;

4, to consider and approve the remuneration proposals for
Directors and supervisors of the Company for the year
ending 31 December 2012;

As Special Resolution:

5. to consider and if the right fit, pass with or without
modifications, the following resolution as a special
resolution:

“THAT:

(a) subject to paragraphs (c), (d) and (e) below, the
exercise by the Board of Directors of the Company
(the "Board”) during the Relevant Period (as
defined in paragraph (f) below) of all the powers of
the Company separately or concurrently to allot,
issue and deal with domestic shares of nominal
value of RMBO0.10 each in the share capital of
the Company (the “"Domestic Shares”) and/or
overseas-listed foreign shares of nominal value of
RMBO0.10 each in the share capital of the Company
(the “H Shares”) be and is hereby approved,;

BEEEMEEERELLCEZERNERAR
([ARRDETNR-_Z——F A=+ /\HEH
mEF TR EREPEARKMBE([HE]) FH
HBETIERSEAGEILILEINRBTHE
E——F+Z A=t -HIFENRRBFRE
(ERBFARE]))  #EARETIIER :

REBRER -

—

BEREEARRABE-_ZS——F+=R
=+ BLEFEENERZEMBERE
RARNEEGWME B ZEEN RS -

ERLMEARNABE T ——F1+_H
=t —HIEFENEFEERESE

ZEREEMNLERREG (FE) GFTEE
ERARAARBBE—T——F1+=
A=+—HULFENZEMEERESS

EEEME

EENIEBE - Z——F+_-_A=+—
BIEFEARREERESNEHES

REFRIRZES

ZELEBBRE(EREGREER) TINR

HEDFRIIRESR

(B :

(a) X (c) ~ (d) R(e)BRZREIT
ERAAREZEE([EFEE DR
BRBREGERR TX(OB)TTEA
RE YIRS ER KRR B - 2%
TRREARARATESREE
ARB010TZAER(TNER])
/SR RRRAHEREEA
R¥0.107t 285 ESNER(TH
1)
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the approval in paragraph (a) above shall authorise
the Board to make an offer or agreement or grant
an option during the Relevant Period which would
or might require Domestic Shares and/or H Shares
to be allotted and issued either during or after the
end of the Relevant Period;

the aggregate nominal value of Domestic Shares
to be allotted and issued or agreed to be allotted
and issued (whether pursuant to an option or
otherwise) by the Board pursuant to the approval
in paragraphs (a) and (b) above, otherwise
than pursuant to (i) a rights issue (as defined
in paragraph (f) below); (ii) the exercise of the
conversion rights under the terms of any securities
which are convertible into such shares; (iii) the
exercise of rights of subscription under the terms
of any warrants issued by the Company; or (iv) any
scrip dividend or similar arrangement providing for
the allotment of such shares in lieu of the whole
or part of a dividend on such shares in accordance
with the articles of association of the Company,
shall not exceed 20 per cent. of the aggregate
nominal value of the Domestic Shares then in issue
at the date of the passing of this resolution;

the aggregate nominal value of H Shares to
be allotted and issued or agreed to be allotted
and issued (whether pursuant to an option or
otherwise) by the Board pursuant to the approval
in paragraphs (a) and (b) above, otherwise
than pursuant to (i) a rights issue (as defined
in paragraph (f) below); (ii) the exercise of the
conversion rights under the terms of any securities
which are convertible into such shares; (iii) the
exercise of rights of subscription under the terms
of any warrants issued by the Company; or (iv) any
scrip dividend or similar arrangement providing for
the allotment of such shares in lieu of the whole
or part of a dividend on such shares in accordance
with the articles of association of the Company,
shall not exceed 20 per cent. of the aggregate
nominal value of the H Shares then in issue at the
date of the passing of this resolution;

the approval in paragraph (a) above shall be
conditional upon the approval of the China
Securities Regulatory Commission being obtained
by the Company;

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
Annual Report 2011

(b)

(c)

(e)

EX@BzitEREEEERE
BAHARIR 2 AT L IR BT E Al
BeREN A IR S R 2 R Bl 3
RBETRNERRSHHEZ ZH
Thh s Sk BB AR

EE2RIE X () Rb) Bz it/E
i AC 2% e 1T A B AC 3 K AT
(EmEEREBEERESEBTR)
ZWNERBEE - RAaOEBRGE
FETXOB) + hiRR AR
B Z GFATERE © (iR
BARRRIEIT 2 EARRBAEE 2 &
FITERBEE © R(VIREARQA
RNAERRAMEAR B AL B AR
AR E 2RO RMREZE
UL HEIN - NEBBARZERB
BEAERTRNEREELRE
20%

EE2RIE () R(b)BzHE
mACEE R BT A B ACE R ETT
(B G RBEBREIEMTT )
ZHEEEE - BAOHER(EER
TXHER) + siKRAT AR E S
ZARBATE LA ¢ (i) RBA
RNRIETT 2 (A RBAERE 2 G T
ERBE - H(VRBERRF AR
SR AMERR S B E A A
REZHHBARMBE Z A%
BESN - NMSEBARERBBER
EETZHRAEZRE220%

EX(a) Bz HL/EZAF AR RERG
TEESEEEREZEG IR
TTAMER



Notice of Annual General Meeting

RRBFARGES

(f) for the purpose of this special resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the
passing of this special resolution until whichever is
the earlier of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general
meeting of the Company following the
passing of this special resolution;

(if) the expiration of a period of 12 months
following the passing of this special
resolution; or

(iii) the date on which the authority set out in
this special resolution is revoked or varied
by a special resolution of the members of
the Company in general meeting.

“Rights issue” means an offer of shares open for
a period fixed by the Directors to holders of shares
of the Company on the register of members of
the Company on a fixed record date and, where
appropriate, the holders of the other equity
securities of the Company entitled to be offered
therein, in proportion to their then holdings of such
shares or other equity securities (subject to such
exclusions or other arrangements as the Directors
may deem necessary or expedient in relation to
fractional entitlements or having regard to any
restrictions or obligations under the laws of any
relevant jurisdiction, or the requirements of any
regulatory body or any stock exchange); and

(9) the Board be and is hereby authorised to make
such amendments to the articles of association
of the Company as it thinks fit so as to increase
the registered share capital and to reflect the new
capital structure of the Company as a result of
the allotment and issue of shares of the Company
pursuant to the approval granted under paragraph (a)
above”;

6. to transact any other business.

By order of the Board of

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
Zhang Hong

Chairman

Tonghua, Jilin Province, the PRC
29 March 2012
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
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Notes:

116

Any shareholder of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the
meeting mentioned above is entitled to appoint one or more proxies
to attend and vote at the meeting on his or her behalf in accordance
with the articles of association of the Company. A proxy needs not be
a shareholder of the Company.

In order to be valid, a proxy form of holder of H shares and, if such
proxy form is signed by a person under a power of attorney or other
authority on behalf of the appointer, a notarially certified copy of that
power of attorney or authority shall be deposited at the Hong Kong
Registrars Limited on 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road
East, Hong Kong (“the Company'’s Shares Registrar”) not less than 24
hours before the time for holding the meeting or 24 hours before the
time appointed for taking the poll.

In order to be valid, a proxy form of holder of Domestic shares and,
if such proxy form is signed by a person under a power of attorney
or other authority on behalf of the appointer, a notarially certified
copy of that power of attorney or authority shall be deposited at the
Registered Address of the Company not less than 24 hours before the
time for holding the meeting or 24 hours before the time appointed
for taking the poll.

Shareholders of the Company or their proxies shall produce
documents of their proof of identity when attending the meeting.

The register of shareholders of the Company will be closed from 27
May 2012 to 28 June 2012 (both days inclusive), during which no
transfer of shares will be registered. As regards holders of H Shares
and in order to ascertain the entitlement to attendance at the above
meeting, all properly completed transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificate must be lodged with the Company's Share
Registrar not later than 25 May 2012 at 4:30 p.m. for registration.

Shareholders of the Company who intend to attend the AGM have
to notify in writing of their attendance by sending such notice to the
Company by hand, post or fax not later than 7 June 2012.

The purpose of having resolution number 5 it to grant a general power
to the board of directors to allot and issue new shares subject to
applicable laws, regulations and rules.

The AGM is expected to last for half a day. Shareholders and their
proxies attending the AGM are responsible for their own transportation
and accommodation expenses.

Registered Address of the Company and the contact details of the
Company are as follows:

31 Beishan Street, Chaoyang Town, Huinan County,
Tonghua, Jilin Province, the PRC
Fax no: 86 (435) 8212738

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
Annual Report 2011
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